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CASE STUDY 1 

Rajesh & Mr. Raj's Financial Analysis and Investment Decisions 

Rajesh is a seasoned financial analyst working for a leading financial consultancy firm in 

India, "FinPro Solutions." He has been assigned to analyze the financial reporting practices 

of Indian companies under the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and their alignment 

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Additionally, he is tasked with 

advising Mr. Raj, an Indian investor and one of FinPro Solutions' clients, on his investment 

portfolio. 

Mr. Raj holds long-term investments in two companies: A Ltd. and B Ltd. These investments 

were made several years ago, and Mr. Raj is now considering reclassifying them based on 

changes in his investment strategy and the fair value of these investments. To assist Mr. Raj, 

Rajesh must also ensure that all accounting treatments comply with the relevant standards, 

particularly Ind AS and AS 13 (Revised). 

Details of the Case 

1. Rajesh begins by studying the differences between Ind AS and IFRS. During his research, 

he comes across the terms "Carve-outs" and "Carve-ins." He notes that these terms describe 

how Ind AS adapts IFRS principles to suit the Indian economic environment. Rajesh wants to 

confirm his understanding of these terms before finalizing his report. 

2. Mr. Raj's Investment Portfolio 

Mr. Raj's investments in A Ltd. and B Ltd. are as follows: 
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Investment in A Ltd.: 

Cost: Rs8,50,000 

Carrying Amount (as of April 1, 20X1): Rs8,00,000 

Investment in B Ltd.: 

Cost: Rs7,00,000 

Carrying Amount (as of April 1, 20X1): Rs7,50,000 

On December 31, 20X1, Mr. Raj reviews the fair values of these investments: 

Fair Value of A Ltd.: Rs8,20,000 

Fair Value of B Ltd.: Rs6,80,000 

Mr. Raj decides to reclassify his investments in accordance with AS 13 (Revised) , which 

governs the classification and measurement of investments. He seeks Rajesh's advice on 

whether to reclassify these investments as current or long-term assets and the appropriate 

values at which they should be recorded. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1: Understanding "Carve-outs" and "Carve-ins" 

Rajesh, while analyzing the relationship between Ind AS and IFRS, comes across the 

concepts of "Carve-outs" and "Carve-ins." Which of the following statements regarding 

"Carve-outs" and "Carve-ins" is correct? 

Options: 

A) "Carve-outs" are additional guidance given in Ind AS beyond what is stated in IFRS, while 

"Carve-ins" represent deviations from IFRS due to economic conditions in India. 

B) "Carve-outs" are deviations from IFRS due to economic conditions in India, while "Carve-

ins" are additional guidance given in Ind AS beyond what is stated in IFRS. 
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C) Both "Carve-outs" and "Carve-ins" are terms used interchangeably in Ind AS to refer to 

deviations from IFRS. 

D) "Carve-outs" and "Carve-ins" have no significance in the context of Ind AS and IFRS. 

Answer: 

B) "Carve-outs" are deviations from IFRS due to economic conditions in India, while "Carve-

ins" are additional guidance given in Ind AS beyond what is stated in IFRS. 

Explanation: "Carve-outs" refer to instances where Ind AS deviates from IFRS to 

accommodate specific economic or regulatory conditions in India. For example, certain 

provisions in Ind AS may differ from IFRS to align with Indian tax laws or market practices. 

On the other hand, "Carve-ins" involve additional requirements or guidance provided in Ind 

AS that go beyond the scope of IFRS. These are often introduced to address unique aspects 

of the Indian business environment. 

 

Q-2: Reclassification of Investments 

On December 31, 20X1, Mr. Raj decides to reclassify his investments in A Ltd. and B Ltd. in 

accordance with AS 13 (Revised). What should Mr. Raj do regarding the reclassification of 

his investments, and what will be the reclassified values? 

Options: 

A) Reclassify both investments as current assets, with reclassified values of Rs8,20,000 for A 

Ltd. and Rs6,80,000 for B Ltd. 

B) Reclassify both investments as current assets, with reclassified values of Rs8,50,000 for A 

Ltd. and Rs7,00,000 for B Ltd. 

C) Reclassify A Ltd. as a current asset at Rs8,20,000 and keep B Ltd. as a long-term asset at 

Rs7,50,000. 
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D) Reclassify B Ltd. as a current asset at Rs7,00,000 and keep A Ltd. as a long-term asset at 

Rs8,00,000. 

Answer: C) Reclassify A Ltd. as a current asset at Rs8,20,000 and keep B Ltd. as a long-term 

asset at Rs7,50,000. 

Explanation: Under AS 13 (Revised) , investments are classified as current or long-term 

based on the intent of the management. The fair value of the investments is considered 

when determining the reclassification. 

For A Ltd.: 

Fair Value (Rs8,20,000) > Carrying Amount (Rs8,00,000) 

Since the fair value exceeds the carrying amount, it indicates that the investment is likely to 

be sold in the near future. Therefore, A Ltd. should be reclassified as a current asset at its 

fair value of Rs8,20,000. 

For B Ltd.: 

Fair Value (Rs6,80,000) < Carrying Amount (Rs7,50,000) 

However, the carrying amount (Rs7,50,000) is still higher than the cost (Rs7,00,000), 

indicating no impairment loss. If Mr. Raj intends to hold this investment for the long term, it 

can remain classified as a long-term asset at its carrying amount of Rs7,50,000. 

 

Q-3: Impact of Reclassification on Profit and Loss 

What is the impact of the reclassification of A Ltd. and B Ltd. on Mr. Raj's profit and loss 

account for the year ended December 31, 20X1? 

Options: 

A) No impact on profit and loss as reclassification does not affect income. 

B) A gain of Rs20,000 from A Ltd. and a loss of Rs70,000 from B Ltd. 
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C) A gain of Rs20,000 from A Ltd. and no loss from B Ltd. 

D) A loss of Rs30,000 from B Ltd. and no gain from A Ltd. 

Answer: C) A gain of Rs20,000 from A Ltd. and no loss from B Ltd. 

Explanation: 

For A Ltd.: 

The investment is reclassified as a current asset at its fair value of Rs8,20,000. 

The carrying amount before reclassification was Rs8,00,000. 

Gain = Fair Value - Carrying Amount = Rs8,20,000 - Rs8,00,000 = Rs20,000. 

For B Ltd.: 

The investment remains classified as a long-term asset at its carrying amount of Rs7,50,000. 

Since there is no reclassification to fair value, no loss is recognized in the profit and loss 

account. 

 

Q-4: Compliance with Ind AS 

Which of the following statements best describes the compliance of Mr. Raj's 

reclassification decision with Ind AS? 

Options:  

A) The reclassification complies with Ind AS as it reflects the fair value of both investments. 

B) The reclassification complies with Ind AS as it considers the intent of management and 

fair value adjustments. 

C) The reclassification does not comply with Ind AS as B Ltd. should also be reclassified as a 

current asset. 
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D) The reclassification does not comply with Ind AS as A Ltd. should remain a long-term 

asset. 

Answer: B) The reclassification complies with Ind AS as it considers the intent of 

management and fair value adjustments. 

Explanation: Under Ind AS, the classification of investments depends on the intent of 

management and the fair value of the investments. Mr. Raj's decision to reclassify A Ltd. as 

a current asset and retain B Ltd. as a long-term asset aligns with these principles. The fair 

value adjustments for A Ltd. and the retention of B Ltd. at its carrying amount are consistent 

with Ind AS requirements. 

 

Q-5: Future Implications of Reclassification 

If Mr. Raj sells A Ltd. in the next financial year at Rs8,50,000, what will be the gain or loss 

recognized in the profit and loss account? 

Options: 

A) Gain of Rs30,000 

B) Gain of Rs50,000 

C) Loss of Rs20,000 

D) No gain or loss as the investment is already reclassified. 

Answer: A) Gain of Rs30,000 

Explanation: Selling Price = Rs8,50,000 

Carrying Amount (after reclassification) = Rs8,20,000 

Gain = Selling Price - Carrying Amount = Rs8,50,000 - Rs8,20,000 = Rs30,000 

This gain will be recognized in the profit and loss account in the year of sale. 
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Conclusion: The case study highlights the practical application of Ind AS and AS 13 (Revised) 

in financial reporting and investment decisions. By understanding the concepts of "Carve-

outs" and "Carve-ins," as well as the rules for reclassification and fair value adjustments, 

Rajesh successfully advises Mr. Raj on his investment portfolio. 

 

CASE STUDY 2 

Rahul Industries and Sunrise Ltd. - Financial Reporting Challenges 

Rahul Industries is a leading manufacturing company in India, specializing in the production 

of industrial machinery. The company has been growing rapidly over the past few years, 

expanding its operations and diversifying its product portfolio. To ensure compliance with 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the finance team at Rahul Industries is preparing its 

financial statements for the fiscal year ending March 31, 20X3. 

Simultaneously, Sunrise Ltd., a publicly traded company in India and one of Rahul Industries' 

key competitors, is also preparing its financial statements for the fiscal year ending March 

31, 20X7. Both companies face unique challenges in their financial reporting processes, 

particularly in preparing the Cash Flow Statement (AS 3) and calculating Earnings Per Share 

(AS 20). 

The finance teams of both companies have sought your expertise to address specific 

accounting issues they are encountering. 

Details of the Case 

1. Rahul Industries: Preparing the Cash Flow Statement 

Rahul Industries is finalizing its Cash Flow Statement under AS 3 for the fiscal year ending 

March 31, 20X3. The company had several significant cash flow transactions during the year: 

Payment of Rs50 lakhs in Corporate Income Tax: This amount was paid as part of the 

company's tax obligations on its operating income. 
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Receipt of Rs20 lakhs as dividends from its subsidiary, SubCo Ltd.: Rahul Industries holds a 

40% stake in SubCo Ltd. and received this dividend as part of its investment returns. 

Acquisition of Rs1.5 crores worth of machinery: The company purchased new machinery to 

expand its production capacity. 

Issuance of Rs30 lakhs in new shares to investors: Rahul Industries issued additional equity 

shares to raise capital for future expansion. 

The finance team is struggling to classify these transactions correctly under the three 

categories of cash flows: Operating Activities, Investing Activities, and Financing Activities. 

2. Sunrise Ltd.: Calculating Earnings Per Share 

Sunrise Ltd. is preparing its financial statements for the fiscal year ending March 31, 20X7. 

During the year, the company experienced several changes in its equity structure: 

Profit after tax: Rs80 crores 

Dividends paid to preference shareholders: Rs10 crores 

Extraordinary gains: Rs5 crores (from the sale of a discontinued operation) 

Interest expenses related to convertible debt securities: Rs3 crores 

Minority interest (profit attributable to minority shareholders): Rs4 crores 

Additionally, Sunrise Ltd. announced a bonus issue and a share split after the balance sheet 

date but before the approval of the financial statements: 

Bonus Issue: One bonus share for every two shares held. 

Share Split: Each share was split into two shares. 

The finance team needs guidance on how to calculate Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) and 

adjust it for the bonus issue and share split. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 
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Q-1: Which of the following cash flow transactions should Rahul Industries classify as 

'Financing Activities' in its Cash Flow Statement? 

A) Payment of Rs50 lakhs in Corporate Income Tax. 

B) Receipt of Rs20 lakhs as dividends from its subsidiary, SubCo Ltd. 

C) Acquisition of Rs1.5 crores worth of machinery. 

D) Issuance of Rs30 lakhs in new shares to investors. 

Answer: D) Issuance of Rs30 lakhs in new shares to investors. 

Explanation: Under AS 3 , cash flows are classified into three categories: Operating 

Activities, Investing Activities, and Financing Activities. 

Option A: Payment of Rs50 lakhs in Corporate Income Tax is classified as an Operating 

Activity because it relates to the company's operating income. 

Option B: Receipt of Rs20 lakhs as dividends from SubCo Ltd. is classified as an Investing 

Activity because it represents income from investments. 

Option C: Acquisition of Rs1.5 crores worth of machinery is classified as an Investing Activity 

because it involves the purchase of long-term assets. 

Option D: Issuance of Rs30 lakhs in new shares to investors is classified as a Financing 

Activity because it involves raising funds through equity issuance. 

Thus, Option D is correct. 

 

Q-2: Exclusions in EPS Calculation 

According to AS 20 on Earnings Per Share, which of the following items should be excluded 

when calculating Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)? 

A) Interest expenses related to convertible debt securities. 
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B) Profit attributable to minority shareholders. 

C) Extraordinary gains and losses. 

D) Dividends paid to preference shareholders. 

Answer: B) Profit attributable to minority shareholders. 

Explanation: Basic EPS is calculated using the formula: 

Basic EPS= 
                                               

                                                    
 

Option A: Interest expenses related to convertible debt securities are included in net profit 

unless the securities are converted into equity. 

Option B: Profit attributable to minority shareholders is excluded because it does not belong 

to the equity shareholders of the parent company. 

Option C: Extraordinary gains and losses are included in net profit as they affect the overall 

profitability of the company. 

Option D: Dividends paid to preference shareholders are deducted from net profit to arrive 

at the profit attributable to equity shareholders. 

Thus, Option B is correct. 

 

Q-3: Adjusting EPS for Bonus Issue and Share Split 

Sunrise Ltd. announced a bonus issue and a share split after the balance sheet date but 

before the approval of the financial statements. According to AS 20 , how should the 

company adjust its EPS calculations? 

A) Adjust EPS calculations only for the bonus issue, as it occurred after the balance sheet 

date. 
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B) Adjust EPS calculations for both the bonus issue and share split, even if they occurred 

after the balance sheet date. 

C) Do not adjust EPS calculations for either the bonus issue or the share split. 

D) Adjust EPS calculations only for the share split, as it affects the number of shares 

outstanding. 

Answer: B) Adjust EPS calculations for both the bonus issue and share split, even if they 

occurred after the balance sheet date. 

Explanation: Under AS 20 , if events like bonus issues or share splits occur after the balance 

sheet date but before the financial statements are approved, the EPS calculations for the 

current and prior periods must be adjusted to reflect the new number of shares. This 

ensures comparability across periods. 

Bonus Issue: One bonus share for every two shares held increases the number of shares by 

50%. 

Share Split: Each share being split into two doubles the number of shares. 

Both adjustments must be applied retroactively to the weighted average number of shares 

outstanding for all periods presented. 

Thus, Option B is correct. 

 

Q-4: Impact of Bonus Issue and Share Split on EPS 

If Sunrise Ltd.'s profit attributable to equity shareholders is Rs66 crores and the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding before the bonus issue and share split is 2 crore, 

what will be the adjusted EPS after considering the bonus issue and share split? 

A) Rs11 per share 

B) Rs16.5 per share 
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C) Rs22 per share 

D) Rs33 per share 

A) Rs11 per share 

Answer: A) Rs11 per share 

Explanation: 

Step 1: Calculate the adjusted number of shares after the bonus issue and share split. 

Original shares: 2 crore 

Bonus issue (1:2 ratio): 2×1.5=3 crore 

Share split (1:2 ratio): 3×2=6 crore 

Adjusted number of shares = 6 crore 

Step 2: Calculate EPS. 

EPS= 
                                          

                         
 

EPS= 
           

               
 = Rs. 11per share 

Thus, Option A is correct. 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the practical application of AS 3 (Cash Flow 

Statements) and AS 20 (Earnings Per Share) in financial reporting. By understanding the 

classification of cash flows and the calculation of EPS, the finance teams of Rahul Industries 

and Sunrise Ltd. can ensure accurate and compliant financial statements. 

 

CASE STUDY 3 

Financial Reporting and Pension Accounting at ABC Ltd. 
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Background of the Company: 

ABC Ltd. is a leading manufacturing company in India, specializing in consumer electronics. 

The company has been in operation for over 25 years and operates multiple cash-generating 

units (CGUs) across the country. One of its key CGUs, "Unit X," is responsible for producing 

high-end home appliances. The company also maintains a defined benefit pension plan for 

its employees, which is managed by an external trustee. 

At the end of the financial year 31.03.20X2, ABC Ltd. conducted a comprehensive review of 

its financial position, including impairment testing for Unit X and assessing the performance 

of its pension plan. Below are the details of the case study that will help answer the 

subsequent MCQs. 

Case Study Details 

Goodwill: ABC Ltd. recognized Rs50,00,000 of goodwill linked to Unit X during its acquisition 

in 20X0. 

Assets within Unit X: The unit includes machinery, buildings, and other equipment 

generating independent cash flows. 

Carrying Amount of Unit X as of 31.03.20X2: Rs2,00,00,000. 

Recoverable Amount of Unit X as of 31.03.20X2: Rs1,80,00,000. 

Previous Impairment Loss Recognized: In 20X1, ABC Ltd. recognized an impairment loss of 

Rs20,00,000 for Unit X due to declining market conditions. 

Change in Estimates (as of 31.03.20X2): There has been a significant improvement in market 

conditions, with higher projected cash inflows, lower cash outflows, and a reduction in 

discount rates used in the valuation model. 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Fair Market Value of Plan Assets: 

As of 31.03.20X1: Rs8,00,000. 
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As of 31.03.20X2: Rs11,40,000. 

Benefits Paid During the Year: Rs2,00,000. 

Employer Contribution During the Year: Rs2,80,000. 

Expected Return on Plan Assets: The expected return rate was set at 8% per annum. 

Actuarial Assumptions: The actuary provided updated assumptions regarding employee 

turnover, salary growth, and discount rates, which were consistent with market trends. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1. Company ABC assesses a cash-generating unit, "Unit X," for potential impairment at the 

end of the financial year. Unit X contains various assets generating independent cash flows. 

ABC recognizes goodwill linked to this unit. Considering the principles of AS 28, which of the 

following statements regarding impairment reversal is accurate? 

(a) Impairment loss can be reversed for any asset within Unit X if estimates of cash inflows 

have increased since the last impairment loss was recognized. 

(b) Reversal of an impairment loss for any asset within Unit X is possible if there has been a 

change in estimates of cash inflows, cash outflows, or discount rates since the last 

impairment loss was recognized. 

(c) Impairment reversal is only allowed for assets other than goodwill, and the reversal 

should never exceed the original impairment loss. 

(d) Reversal of an impairment loss is mandatory for all assets within Unit X if there has been 

a change in estimates of cash inflows since the last impairment loss was recognized. 

Answer: (b)  

Explanation: According to AS 28, an impairment loss recognized in prior periods can be 

reversed if there is evidence of a change in estimates of cash inflows, cash outflows, or 

discount rates that increases the recoverable amount of the asset. However, impairment 

reversal is not mandatory, and it is subject to certain limitations. For example, the carrying 
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amount of the asset after reversal cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined had no impairment loss been recognized previously. Additionally, impairment 

reversal is not permitted for goodwill. Therefore, option (b) is correct. 

 

Q-2. Actual Return on Plan Assets 

ABC Ltd. has a defined benefit pension plan for its employees. For the year ended 

31.03.20X2, the company provides the following data related to the plan: 

Benefits paid: Rs2,00,000 

Employer contribution: Rs2,80,000 

Fair market value of plan assets on 31.03.20X2: Rs11,40,000 

Fair market value of plan assets as on 31.03.20X1: Rs8,00,000 

What is the actual return on plan assets for the year 31.03.20X2, and how should it be 

calculated? 

Options: 

A) Rs2,80,000 - It is the difference between the fair market value of plan assets on 

31.03.20X2 and the fair market value on 31.03.20X1. 

B) Rs80,000 - It is the difference between the employer contribution and benefits paid. 

C) Rs5,20,000 - It is the sum of benefits paid and employer contribution. 

D) Rs2,60,000 - It is the difference between the fair market value of plan assets on 

31.03.20X2 and the fair market value on 31.03.20X1, adjusted for benefits paid and 

employer contribution. 

Answer: D) Rs2,60,000 

Explanation: The actual return on plan assets is calculated as follows: 
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Actual Return = (Fair Market Value on 31.03.20X2 - Fair Market Value on 31.03.20X1) - 

Employer Contribution + Benefits Paid 

= Rs11,40,000 - Rs8,00,000 - Rs2,80,000 + Rs2,00,000 

= Rs2,60,000 

Thus, the actual return on plan assets for the year is Rs2,60,000. 

 

Q-3. Expected vs. Actual Return on Plan Assets 

Using the same data as Q-2, calculate the difference between the expected return on plan 

assets (based on an 8% rate) and the actual return on plan assets for the year ended 

31.03.20X2. 

A) Rs20,000 

B) Rs40,000 

C) Rs60,000 

D) Rs80,000 

Answer: A) Rs20,000 

Explanation: Expected Return = Fair Market Value on 31.03.20X1 × Expected Rate of Return 

= Rs8,00,000 × 8% 

= Rs64,000 

Difference = Expected Return - Actual Return 

= Rs64,000 - Rs2,60,000 

= Rs20,000 
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Q-4. Impact of Impairment Reversal on Financial Statements 

If ABC Ltd. reverses the impairment loss of Rs20,00,000 recognized in 20X1 for Unit X, what 

will be the impact on the company's financial statements for the year ended 31.03.20X2? 

A) Increase in profit before tax by Rs20,00,000. 

B) Decrease in profit before tax by Rs20,00,000. 

C) No impact on profit before tax but an increase in equity. 

D) No impact on profit before tax or equity. 

Answer: A) Increase in profit before tax by Rs20,00,000. 

Explanation: Reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, thereby 

increasing profit before tax by the amount of the reversal (Rs20,00,000 in this case). 

 

Q-5. Goodwill and Impairment Reversal 

Which of the following statements is true regarding goodwill and impairment reversal under 

AS 28? 

A) Impairment reversal is allowed for goodwill if there is a change in estimates. 

B) Impairment reversal is not allowed for goodwill under any circumstances. 

C) Impairment reversal for goodwill is mandatory if the recoverable amount exceeds the 

carrying amount. 

D) Impairment reversal for goodwill is limited to 50% of the original impairment loss. 

Answer: B) Impairment reversal is not allowed for goodwill under any circumstances. 

Explanation: Under AS 28, impairment losses recognized for goodwill cannot be reversed, 

regardless of changes in estimates or market conditions. This is because goodwill is 
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considered an intangible asset with indefinite useful life, and its impairment reflects a 

permanent decline in value. 

 

CASE STUDY 4 

Financial Challenges at Global Ltd. and Gruh Construction Company 

Background of the Case: 

Global Ltd., a leading multinational corporation, is involved in various international trade 

activities. The company has recently expanded its operations to include large-scale 

infrastructure projects in collaboration with Gruh Construction Company Limited. Mr. 

Sharma, the finance executive at Global Ltd., is responsible for managing foreign exchange 

transactions and ensuring compliance with accounting standards. 

Gruh Construction Company Limited, on the other hand, specializes in constructing 

commercial and residential buildings. The company recently secured a contract to construct 

a high-rise office building for Global Ltd. This case study explores the financial challenges 

faced by both companies during their collaboration. 

 

Q-1 Scenario 1: Foreign Exchange Transaction at Global Ltd. 

In January 20X1, Global Ltd. entered into a forward exchange contract to hedge against 

currency fluctuations. The company agreed to purchase USD 100,000 at a rate of Rs75.50 

per USD, with the settlement date set for April 1, 20X1. On the settlement date, the spot 

rate was Rs76.20 per USD. Mr. Sharma must determine how to account for the gain or loss 

arising from this transaction. 

Question: How should the gain or loss on the forward contract be recognized in the books? 

A) Recognize a gain of Rs70,000 in the Profit & Loss Account. 

B) Recognize a loss of Rs70,000 in the Profit & Loss Account. 
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C) Recognize a gain of Rs75,000 in the Profit & Loss Account. 

D) Recognize a loss of Rs75,000 in the Profit & Loss Account. 

Answer: B) Recognize a loss of Rs70,000 in the Profit & Loss Account. 

Working: 

The loss arises due to the difference between the contracted rate (Rs75.50 per USD) and the 

spot rate on the settlement date (Rs76.20 per USD). 

Loss = (Spot Rate - Forward Rate) × Contract Amount 

Loss = (Rs76.20 - Rs75.50) × USD 100,000 

Loss = Rs0.70 × 100,000 = Rs70,000 

Since the spot rate on the settlement date is higher than the contracted rate, Global Ltd. 

incurs a loss of Rs70,000. This loss is recognized in the Profit & Loss Account. 

 

Q-2 Scenario 2: Construction Contract at Gruh Construction Company 

On December 1, 2017, Gruh Construction Company Limited undertook a contract to 

construct a high-rise office building for Global Ltd. The total contract value was Rs108 lakhs. 

By March 31, 2018, Gruh had already spent Rs83.99 lakhs on construction. A prudent 

estimate of additional costs required to complete the project was Rs36.01 lakhs. The 

company needs to determine whether a provision for foreseeable loss should be made in its 

final accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018, as per AS 7 "Accounting for Construction 

Contracts." 

Question: The amount of the provision for foreseeable loss that must be made in the Final 

Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018, based on AS 7 "Accounting for Construction 

Contracts," is: 

(A) Rs13.01 lakhs 
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(B) Rs120.00 lakhs 

(C) Rs12.00 lakhs 

(D) Rs36.01 lakhs 

Answer: C) Rs12.00 lakhs 

Working: 

Calculation of Estimated Total Cost of Construction: 

Estimated Total Cost = Costs Incurred to Date + Additional Costs to Complete 

Estimated Total Cost = Rs83.99 lakhs + Rs36.01 lakhs = Rs120 lakhs 

Calculation of Provision for Foreseeable Loss: 

Provision for Foreseeable Loss = Contract Revenue - Estimated Total Cost 

Provision for Foreseeable Loss = Rs108 lakhs - Rs120 lakhs = Rs12 lakhs 

As per AS 7, if the estimated total cost exceeds the contract revenue, a provision for 

foreseeable loss must be recognized. Therefore, Gruh Construction Company Limited must 

make a provision of Rs12 lakhs in its final accounts. 

 

Q-3 Scenario 3: Hedging Strategy at Global Ltd. 

To mitigate risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations, Global Ltd. decided to 

implement a hedging strategy using forward contracts. On July 1, 20X1, the company 

entered into another forward contract to sell USD 200,000 at a rate of Rs74.00 per USD, 

with the settlement date set for October 1, 20X1. On the settlement date, the spot rate was 

Rs73.50 per USD. Mr. Sharma needs to calculate the gain or loss on this transaction. 

Question: What is the gain or loss on the forward contract entered into on July 1, 20X1? 

A) Gain of Rs10,000 
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B) Loss of Rs10,000 

C) Gain of Rs20,000 

D) Loss of Rs20,000 

Answer: A) Gain of Rs10,000 

Working: 

Gain = (Forward Rate - Spot Rate) × Contract Amount 

Gain = (Rs74.00 - Rs73.50) × USD 200,000 

Gain = Rs0.50 × 200,000 = Rs10,000 

Since the forward rate is higher than the spot rate, Global Ltd. records a gain of Rs10,000 on 

the transaction. 

 

Q-4 Scenario 4: Progress Billing at Gruh Construction Company 

By September 30, 2018, Gruh Construction Company had completed 60% of the project. The 

company billed Global Ltd. for 50% of the contract value (Rs54 lakhs) as per the terms of the 

agreement. However, only Rs45 lakhs had been received by Gruh as of September 30, 2018. 

The company needs to determine the amount of unbilled revenue to be recognized in its 

books. 

Question: What is the amount of unbilled revenue to be recognized in the books of Gruh 

Construction Company as of September 30, 2018? 

A) Rs6 lakhs 

B) Rs9 lakhs 

C) Rs18 lakhs 

D) Rs12 lakhs 
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Answer: A) Rs6 lakhs 

Working: 

Revenue Recognized Based on Percentage of Completion: 

Revenue Recognized = Contract Value × Percentage of Completion 

Revenue Recognized = Rs108 lakhs × 60% = Rs64.8 lakhs 

Unbilled Revenue: 

Unbilled Revenue = Revenue Recognized - Amount Billed 

Unbilled Revenue = Rs64.8 lakhs - Rs54 lakhs = Rs10.8 lakhs 

However, since only Rs45 lakhs has been received, the unbilled revenue is adjusted to 

reflect the actual cash inflow. Thus, the correct answer is Rs6 lakhs. 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the financial challenges faced by Global Ltd. and Gruh 

Construction Company in managing foreign exchange transactions and construction 

contracts. By analyzing the scenarios and solving the MCQs, users can understand the 

application of accounting principles and standards in real-world situations. 

 

 

CASE STUDY 5 

Amalgamation and Consolidation of H Ltd. and S Ltd. 

Background: 

H Ltd. is a large conglomerate operating in the manufacturing sector, with a strong presence 

in the domestic market. Over the years, it has acquired several smaller companies to expand 

its operations. Recently, H Ltd. decided to acquire S Ltd., a subsidiary company that 
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specializes in producing specialized machinery components. The acquisition was structured 

as an amalgamation in the nature of purchase. Both companies have their accounting year 

ending on 31st March. 

Key Financial Data: 

1. Amalgamation Details: 

Fixed Assets of S Ltd.: Rs25,60,000 

Current Assets of S Ltd.: Rs12,50,000 

Total Debts of S Ltd.: Rs11,30,000 

Debit balance of Profit and Loss Account of S Ltd.: Rs2,20,000 

Purchase Consideration paid by H Ltd. to acquire S Ltd.: Rs24,00,000 

To streamline the financial reporting process, the management of H Ltd. has tasked its 

finance team with preparing consolidated financial statements for the group. During this 

process, they encountered certain issues related to the valuation of assets, goodwill, capital 

reserve, and intercompany transactions. Below are the details of the case study, along with 

the relevant data to solve the multiple-choice questions (MCQs). 

2. Intercompany Transaction: 

On 30th March 2018, S Ltd. issued a cheque for Rs5,000 to H Ltd. as part of an intercompany 

settlement. 

The cheque was received by H Ltd. on 1st April 2019. 

The accounting year for both companies closed on 31st March 2019. 

3. Consolidation Process: 

The finance team of H Ltd. is working on consolidating the financial statements of H Ltd. and 

S Ltd. They need to address the following issues: 
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Treatment of the cheque in transit in the consolidated financial statements. 

Calculation of goodwill or capital reserve arising from the amalgamation. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study: 

Q1. In the case of amalgamation in the nature of purchase, the amount of Capital Reserve or 

Goodwill will be: 

(A) Goodwill Rs60,000 

(B) Goodwill Rs2,80,000 

(C) Capital Reserve Rs60,000 

(D) Capital Reserve Rs1,60,000 

Ans- To determine whether there is goodwill or capital reserve, we need to calculate the 

Net Assets of S Ltd. and compare it with the Purchase Consideration paid by H Ltd. 

 Calculation of Net Assets of S Ltd.: 

Fixed Assets = Rs25,60,000 

Current Assets = Rs12,50,000 

Total Debts = Rs11,30,000 

Debit balance of Profit and Loss A/c = Rs2,20,000 

Net Assets = Fixed Assets + Current Assets - Total Debts - Debit balance of Profit and Loss 

A/c 

Net Assets = Rs25,60,000 + Rs12,50,000 - Rs11,30,000 - Rs2,20,000 

Net Assets = Rs24,60,000 

 Comparison with Purchase Consideration: 

Purchase Consideration = Rs24,00,000 
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Net Assets = Rs24,60,000 

Since the Net Assets exceed the Purchase Consideration, the difference represents a 

Capital Reserve. 

Capital Reserve = Net Assets - Purchase Consideration 

Capital Reserve = Rs24,60,000 - Rs24,00,000 

Capital Reserve = Rs60,000 

Answer: (C) Capital Reserve Rs60,000 

 

Q-2 S Ltd. remitted a cheque for Rs5,000 to H Ltd. on 30th March 2018, which was received 

by H Ltd. on 1st April 2019. The accounting year of both companies closed on 31st March 

2019. Which of the following treatments is correct in the consolidated financial statement 

for the cheque in transit? 

(A) Bank balance of S Ltd. will be added by Rs5,000, and a cheque in transit of Rs5,000 will 

be separately shown in the balance sheet on the asset side. 

(B) Really no treatment is required for a cheque in transit as it does not affect the aggregate 

bank balance of the group if proper entries are passed by the parent company and 

subsidiary company as and when the cheque is received or paid. 

(C) Bank balance of H Ltd. will be increased by Rs5,000, and a cheque in transit of Rs5,000 

will be separately shown in the balance sheet on the asset side. 

(D) All of the above are correct. 

Solution: 

In the context of consolidated financial statements, intercompany transactions (such as the 

transfer of funds via a cheque) are eliminated because they represent internal movements 

within the group. The cheque in transit does not affect the aggregate bank balance of the 
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group as long as proper accounting entries are passed by both companies upon receipt or 

payment. 

The cheque issued by S Ltd. reduces its bank balance as of 30th March 2018. 

The cheque received by H Ltd. increases its bank balance as of 1st April 2019. 

Since the consolidated financial statements combine the financial positions of both 

companies, the net effect of the cheque in transit is zero. Therefore, no separate treatment 

is required for the cheque in transit in the consolidated financial statements. 

Answer: (B) Really no treatment is required for a cheque in transit as it does not affect the 

aggregate bank balance of the group if proper entries are passed by the parent company 

and subsidiary company as and when the cheque is received or paid. 

 

Q3. If the Purchase Consideration had been Rs26,00,000 instead of Rs24,00,000, what 

would have been the amount of Goodwill or Capital Reserve? 

(A) Goodwill Rs1,40,000 

(B) Goodwill Rs2,00,000 

(C) Capital Reserve Rs1,40,000 

(D) Capital Reserve Rs2,00,000 

Solution: 

Using the same formula as in Q1: 

Net Assets of S Ltd. = Rs24,60,000 (as calculated earlier). 

New Purchase Consideration = Rs26,00,000 

Since the Purchase Consideration exceeds the Net Assets, the difference represents 

Goodwill. 



 

CATESTSERIES.ORG 
 

Goodwill = Purchase Consideration - Net Assets 

Goodwill = Rs26,00,000 - Rs24,60,000 

Goodwill = Rs1,40,000 

Answer: (A) Goodwill Rs1,40,000 

 

Q4. What is the primary reason for eliminating intercompany transactions in the 

consolidated financial statements? 

(A) To ensure compliance with tax regulations. 

(B) To avoid double-counting of revenues and expenses within the group. 

(C) To reflect the true financial position of the group as a single economic entity. 

(D) Both (B) and (C). 

Solution: 

Intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidated financial statements to: 

Avoid double-counting of revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities within the group. 

Reflect the true financial position of the group as a single economic entity, rather than as 

separate legal entities. 

Answer: (D) Both (B) and (C). 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the complexities involved in amalgamations and 

consolidation of financial statements. By addressing the key issues such as goodwill 

calculation, capital reserve determination, and treatment of intercompany transactions, the 

finance team of H Ltd. can prepare accurate and reliable consolidated financial statements 

for the group. 
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CASE STUDY 6 

Wise Ltd. and Smart Ltd. Merger, and Company Y's Capital Restructuring 

Background 

In the dynamic world of corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions (M&A) are often 

pursued to achieve growth and synergy. Similarly, companies facing financial distress resort 

to capital restructuring techniques like "Surrender of Shares" to stabilize their financial 

position. This case study explores two scenarios involving two distinct companies: Wise Ltd. 

and Smart Ltd., which are considering a merger, and Company Y, which is undergoing a 

capital reorganization. 

Scenario 1: Merger of Wise Ltd. and Smart Ltd. 

Company Details: 

Wise Ltd. : 

 Assets: Rs.75 lakhs 

 Liabilities: Rs.25 lakhs 

 Face value of each share: Rs.100 

Smart Ltd. : 

 Assets: Rs.60 lakhs 

 Liabilities: Rs.30 lakhs 

Merger Agreement: 

 Wise Ltd. agrees to acquire Smart Ltd. for a consideration of Rs.45 lakhs. 

 The consideration will be settled by issuing new shares in Wise Ltd. at a 20% 

premium over their face value. 

 The assets and liabilities of Smart Ltd. will be taken over at their book values. 
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Key Stakeholders: 

 Mr. A, CEO of Wise Ltd., believes that the merger will enhance market presence and 

operational efficiency. 

 Ms. C, CFO of Smart Ltd., supports the deal as it provides liquidity to shareholders. 

Scenario 2: Company Y's Capital Restructuring 

Company Details: 

 Company Y has been grappling with sustained financial setbacks due to high debt 

levels. 

 The company decides to implement a capital reorganization plan using the 

"Surrender of Shares" method to alleviate its debt burden. 

Shareholder Details: 

 Mr. B, a shareholder of Company Y, holds 500 shares of Rs.100 each. 

Capital Reorganization Plan: 

 Company Y requests shareholders like Mr. B to voluntarily surrender their shares. 

 Surrendered shares will be allotted to debenture holders and creditors as part of a 

settlement plan. 

 Any unutilized surrendered shares will be canceled and transferred to the 

"Reconstruction Account." 

Key Stakeholders: 

 Mr. D, Chairman of Company Y, emphasizes the importance of this restructuring to 

ensure long-term sustainability. 

 Ms. E, a creditor of Company Y, agrees to accept shares in lieu of outstanding dues. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1 Journal Entry for Wise Ltd.'s Acquisition of Smart Ltd. 
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What will be the journal entry made by Wise Ltd. to record the acquisition of Smart Ltd. and 

the issuance of shares to settle the consideration? 

Options: 

a) Debit Business Acquisition Account: Rs.45,00,000, Credit Equity Share Capital Account: 

Rs.20,00,000, Credit Securities Premium Account: Rs.25,00,000 

b) Debit Business Purchase Account: Rs.45,00,000, Credit Equity Share Capital Account: 

Rs.37,50,000, Credit Securities Premium Account: Rs.7,50,000 

c) Debit Smart Ltd. Account: Rs.54,00,000, Credit Equity Share Capital Account: 

Rs.45,00,000, Credit Securities Premium Account: Rs.9,00,000 

d) Debit Business Combination Account: Rs.45,00,000, Credit Equity Share Capital Account: 

Rs.25,00,000, Credit Securities Premium Account: Rs.20,00,000 

Ans- b) 

Working: 

Consideration = Rs.45,00,000 

Shares issued at 20% premium: 

Face value per share = Rs.100 

Issue price per share = Rs.100 + 20% of Rs.100 = Rs.120 

Number of shares issued = Rs.45,00,000 ÷ Rs.120 = 37,500 shares 

Equity Share Capital = 37,500 × Rs.100 = Rs.37,50,000 

Securities Premium = 37,500 × Rs.20 = Rs.7,50,000 

Journal Entry: 

Business Purchase Account   Rs.45,00,000 
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                          To Equity Share Capital Account   Rs.37,50,000 

                          To Securities Premium Account    Rs.7,50,000 

 

Q-2 Company Y's Capital Restructuring Strategy 

Which course of action is Company Y most likely to follow? 

Options: 

(a) Company Y will repurchase Mr. B's shares at a discounted price, thereby reducing his 

ownership stake and alleviating the company's liabilities. 

(b) Company Y will offer to convert Mr. B's existing shares into shares of a smaller 

denomination, thereby facilitating the Surrender of Shares process. 

(c) Company Y will issue new shares to Mr. B, enabling him to contribute additional capital 

and in turn, reducing the company's debt load. 

(d) Company Y will request Mr. B to return his shares to the company, which will then allot 

these surrendered shares to debenture holders and creditors. 

Ans- d) 

Explanation: 

In the context of "Surrender of Shares," Company Y requests shareholders like Mr. B to 

voluntarily return their shares. These surrendered shares are then allotted to debenture 

holders and creditors as part of a settlement plan. This helps reduce the company's 

liabilities and stabilizes its financial position. 

 

Q-3 Impact of Merger on Wise Ltd.'s Balance Sheet 

After the merger, what will be the total assets and liabilities of Wise Ltd.? 
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Options: 

a) Assets: Rs.135 lakhs, Liabilities: Rs.55 lakhs 

b) Assets: Rs.120 lakhs, Liabilities: Rs.50 lakhs 

c) Assets: Rs.150 lakhs, Liabilities: Rs.60 lakhs 

d) Assets: Rs.140 lakhs, Liabilities: Rs.45 lakhs 

Ans- a) 

Working: 

Wise Ltd.'s initial assets = Rs.75 lakhs 

Smart Ltd.'s assets = Rs.60 lakhs 

Total assets after merger = Rs.75 lakhs + Rs.60 lakhs = Rs.135 lakhs 

Wise Ltd.'s initial liabilities = Rs.25 lakhs 

Smart Ltd.'s liabilities = Rs.30 lakhs 

Total liabilities after merger = Rs.25 lakhs + Rs.30 lakhs = Rs.55 lakhs 

 

Q-4 Treatment of Unutilized Surrendered Shares in Company Y 

What happens to any unutilized surrendered shares in Company Y's capital restructuring 

plan? 

Options: 

(a) They are converted into preference shares. 

(b) They are transferred to the Reconstruction Account. 

(c) They are sold to new investors at a premium. 
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(d) They are distributed among existing shareholders as dividends. 

Ans- b) 

Explanation: Unutilized surrendered shares are canceled and transferred to the 

"Reconstruction Account." This account is used to reflect the adjustments made during the 

capital reorganization process. 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the intricacies of mergers and capital restructuring in 

corporate finance. By analyzing the provided data and working through the MCQs, users can 

gain a deeper understanding of how companies navigate complex financial decisions to 

achieve stability and growth. 

 

 

CASE STUDY 7 

Aditya Corp and XYZ Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 

Background 

Aditya Corp is a rapidly expanding multinational corporation with operations spanning 

multiple countries. The company operates various branches, including independent 

branches, integral foreign operations (IFOs), and non-integral foreign operations (NFOs). To 

ensure compliance with international accounting standards, the company follows specific 

accounting policies for translating financial statements of its foreign operations. 

XYZ Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., a subsidiary of Aditya Corp, is a domestic company specializing in 

technology solutions. Mr. Gupta, the CEO of XYZ Enterprises, is reviewing the financial 

statements for the fiscal year 20X2-20X3. He wants to ensure that all transactions are 

classified correctly according to accounting principles. 

Scenario 1: Foreign Operations of Aditya Corp 
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Aditya Corp has three types of foreign operations: 

 

Independent Branches : These branches maintain their own comprehensive accounting 

records but report to the head office periodically. 

Integral Foreign Operations (IFOs) : These operations are closely integrated with the parent 

company and use the parent company’s functional currency. 

Non-Integral Foreign Operations (NFOs) : These operations operate independently and use 

their local currencies as the functional currency. 

The following details are relevant for Aditya Corp's foreign operations: 

An IFO purchased tangible fixed assets worth $500,000 on January 1, 20X1, when the 

exchange rate was Rs75 per dollar. The assets are carried at cost, and depreciation is 

calculated using the straight-line method over 10 years. 

On December 31, 20X2, the exchange rate was Rs80 per dollar. 

A NFO incurred a foreign currency translation difference of Rs500,000 during the year 20X2-

20X3. 

Scenario 2: Financial Transactions of XYZ Enterprises 

During the fiscal year 20X2-20X3, XYZ Enterprises recorded the following transactions: 

Sale of Patent : XYZ Enterprises sold a patent it owned for Rs50,000. 

Legal Fees : The company paid Rs20,000 in legal fees to protect its intellectual property 

rights. 

Employee Training Programs : XYZ Enterprises spent Rs10,000 on employee training 

programs expected to benefit the company for several years. 

Mr. Gupta is concerned about the correct classification of these transactions in the financial 

statements. 
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MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1 Foreign Operations of Aditya Corp 

Which of the following statements about the translation of different types of branches and 

foreign operations is accurate? 

 

(a) Independent branches maintain comprehensive accounting records at the head office, 

including separate trial balances for each branch. 

(b) Non-Integral Foreign Operations (NFOs) translate balance sheet items using actual 

exchange rates on the date of transactions. 

(c) Integral Foreign Operations (IFOs) translate the cost and depreciation of tangible fixed 

assets using the exchange rate at the date of valuation. 

(d) Foreign currency translation differences for NFOs are charged to the foreign currency 

translation reserve until the disposal of net investment. 

Ans- (c) 

Explanation: 

Option (a): Incorrect. Independent branches maintain their own accounting records, but 

they do not prepare separate trial balances for the head office. 

Option (b): Incorrect. NFOs translate balance sheet items using the closing exchange rate, 

not the actual exchange rate on the date of transactions. 

Option (c): Correct. For IFOs, non-monetary items like tangible fixed assets are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date of purchase if carried at cost. If carried at fair value, the 

rate at the date of valuation is used. 

Option (d): Incorrect. Foreign currency translation differences for NFOs are recognized in 

other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. 
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Q-2 Financial Transactions of XYZ Enterprises 

During the year, XYZ Enterprises earned Rs50,000 from the sale of a patent it owned. 

Additionally, they paid Rs20,000 for legal fees to protect their intellectual property rights. 

They also spent Rs10,000 on employee training programs that they believe will benefit the 

company for several years. 

Which of the following statements is correct regarding the treatment of these transactions? 

A) The income of Rs50,000 from the sale of the patent should be recognized as a gain in the 

profit and loss statement. 

B) The legal fees of Rs20,000 should be recognized as an asset on the balance sheet. 

C) The employee training expense of Rs10,000 should be recognized as an asset on the 

balance sheet. 

D) The income of Rs50,000 from the sale of the patent should be recognized as income, the 

legal fees of Rs20,000 as an expense, and the employee training expense of Rs10,000 as an 

asset on the balance sheet. 

Ans- (D) 

Explanation: 

 Income from Sale of Patent: The Rs50,000 is revenue earned from the sale of an 

intangible asset and should be recognized as income in the profit and loss statement. 

 Legal Fees: The Rs20,000 represents costs incurred in the ordinary course of business 

and should be recognized as an expense. 

 Employee Training Expense: The Rs10,000 is expected to provide future economic 

benefits over several years and should be capitalized as an asset. 

 

Q-3 Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets in IFOs 
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For the tangible fixed assets purchased by the IFO of Aditya Corp on January 1, 20X1, 

calculate the depreciation expense for the year 20X2-20X3 in Indian rupees. 

(a) Rs4,500,000 

(b) Rs4,000,000 

(c) Rs3,750,000 

(d) Rs5,000,000 

Ans- (c) 

Cost of the asset: $500,000 × Rs75 = Rs37,500,000 

Useful life: 10 years 

Annual depreciation: Rs37,500,000 ÷ 10 = Rs3,750,000 

 

Q-4 Foreign Currency Translation Differences for NFOs 

What is the treatment of the Rs500,000 foreign currency translation difference incurred by 

the NFO of Aditya Corp during the year 20X2-20X3? 

(a) Recognized in profit or loss. 

(b) Recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency 

translation reserve. 

(c) Charged directly to retained earnings. 

(d) Offset against the net investment in the foreign operation. 

Ans- (b)  
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Explanation: Foreign currency translation differences for NFOs are recognized in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve until 

the disposal of the net investment. 

 

Q-5 Employee Training Programs 

If the employee training programs of XYZ Enterprises are expected to benefit the company 

for 5 years, what would be the annual amortization expense? 

(a) Rs1,000 

(b) Rs2,000 

(c) Rs3,000 

(d) Rs4,000 

Ans- (b) 

Total capitalized amount: Rs10,000 

Useful life: 5 years 

Annual amortization: Rs10,000 ÷ 5 = Rs2,000 

 

Conclusion: This case study integrates the operations of Aditya Corp and XYZ Enterprises, 

providing a cohesive narrative for solving the MCQs. Each question is linked to specific 

transactions or accounting policies, ensuring consistency and clarity. 

 

CASE STUDY 8 

XYZ Corporation and Win Limited 
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XYZ Corporation is a diversified multinational company with operations spanning across 

three major business segments: Electronics, Pharmaceuticals, and Automobiles. The 

company operates in various geographical regions and follows the Accounting Standard (AS) 

17 for 'Segment Reporting'. In 2023, Mr. Kumar, the Chief Accountant of XYZ Corporation, 

was tasked with identifying the reportable segments based on the segment-wise data 

provided by the management. 

Additionally, XYZ Corporation has a subsidiary named Win Limited, which is undergoing 

reconstruction due to financial restructuring. The reconstruction involves issuing new equity 

shares, preference shares, and debentures, as well as writing down certain assets like 

Goodwill, Plant and Machinery, and Freehold Property. Mr. Kumar is also responsible for 

ensuring that all accounting entries related to the reconstruction are accurately recorded. 

Details of XYZ Corporation's Operations in 2023 

The total revenue and total assets of XYZ Corporation for the year 2023 were Rs500 million 

and Rs1 billion, respectively. The segment-wise data provided by Mr. Kumar is as follows: 

Segment Revenue (Rs in Million) Assets (Rs in Million) 

Electronics 150 300 

Pharmaceuticals 50 80 

Automobiles 200 320 

According to AS 17, a business segment should be identified as a reportable segment if it 

meets any of the following criteria: 

Its revenue from sales to external customers and other transactions is 10% or more of the 

total revenue (external and internal) of all segments. 

Its segment result (profit or loss) is 10% or more of the combined result of all segments in 

profit or loss, whichever is greater in absolute amount. 

Its segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments. 
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Details of Win Limited's Reconstruction 

Win Limited, a subsidiary of XYZ Corporation, is undergoing reconstruction due to financial 

difficulties. The key adjustments include: 

1. Issuing new equity shares and preference shares to existing shareholders. 

2. Issuing 10% First Debentures worth Rs200 million. 

3. Writing down the values of the following assets: 

 Goodwill: Written down by Rs50 million. 

 Plant and Machinery: Written down by Rs100 million. 

 Freehold Property: Written down by Rs80 million. 

The reconstruction process involves creating a Capital Reduction Account to record the 

reductions and write-offs. The Capital Reduction Account will also be used to write off the 

Profit and Loss Account balance and any remaining assets. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1 Identifying Reportable Segments 

XYZ Corporation follows AS 17 for segment reporting. Based on the segment-wise data 

provided by Mr. Kumar, which of the following statements is correct regarding the 

identification of reportable segments? 

a) Yes, as only the Electronics and Automobiles segments have assets that are 10% or more 

of the total assets of all segments. 

b) Yes, as only the Electronics and Automobiles segments have revenue that is 10% or more 

of the total revenue of all segments. 

c) No, all three segments - Electronics, Pharmaceuticals, and Automobiles - should be 

identified as reportable segments. 
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d) No, only the Automobiles segment should be identified as a reportable segment as it has 

the highest revenue and assets. 

Ans- (c) No, all three segments - Electronics, Pharmaceuticals, and Automobiles - should be 

identified as reportable segments. 

Explanation: To determine whether a segment is reportable, we apply the criteria specified 

in AS 17: 

1. Revenue Criterion: A segment’s revenue must be 10% or more of the total revenue of all 

segments. 

Electronics: (150/500) × 100 = 30% → Meets the criterion. 

Pharmaceuticals: (50/500) × 100 = 10% → Meets the criterion. 

Automobiles: (200/500) × 100 = 40% → Meets the criterion. 

2. Assets Criterion: A segment’s assets must be 10% or more of the total assets of all 

segments. 

Electronics: (300/1000) × 100 = 30% → Meets the criterion. 

Pharmaceuticals: (80/1000) × 100 = 8% → Does not meet the criterion. 

Automobiles: (320/1000) × 100 = 32% → Meets the criterion. 

Since each segment meets at least one criterion (Electronics and Automobiles meet both, 

while Pharmaceuticals meets the revenue criterion), all three segments should be identified 

as reportable segments. 

 

Q-2 Recording Adjustments During Reconstruction 

During the reconstruction of Win Limited, how should the adjustments involving the 

issuance of new shares, debentures, and the writing down of assets be recorded? 
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(a) New Equity Share Capital A/c Dr. (for equity shares issued), New Preference Share 

Capital A/c Dr. (for preference shares issued), 10% First Debentures A/c Dr. (for debentures 

issued), Capital Reduction A/c Dr. (for writing down assets), Capital Reduction A/c Cr. (for 

writing off P&L A/c and remaining assets). 

(b) Equity Share Capital A/c Dr. (for equity shares issued), Preference Share Capital A/c Dr. 

(for preference shares issued), Debentures A/c Dr. (for debentures issued), Goodwill A/c Cr., 

Plant and Machinery A/c Cr., Freehold Property A/c Cr. 

(c) New Equity Share Capital A/c Dr. (for equity shares issued), New Preference Share Capital 

A/c Dr. (for preference shares issued), 12% Debentures A/c Dr. (for debentures issued), 

Capital Reduction A/c Dr. (for writing down assets), Capital Reduction A/c Cr. (for writing off 

P&L A/c and remaining assets). 

(d) Equity Share Capital A/c Dr. (for equity shares issued), Preference Share Capital A/c Dr. 

(for preference shares issued), 10% First Debentures A/c Dr. (for debentures issued), Capital 

Reduction A/c Dr. (for writing down assets), Capital Reduction A/c Cr. (for writing off P&L 

A/c and remaining assets). 

Ans- (a) New Equity Share Capital A/c Dr. (for equity shares issued), New Preference Share 

Capital A/c Dr. (for preference shares issued), 10% First Debentures A/c Dr. (for debentures 

issued), Capital Reduction A/c Dr. (for writing down assets), Capital Reduction A/c Cr. (for 

writing off P&L A/c and remaining assets). 

Explanation: 

The journal entries for the reconstruction process are as follows: 

1. Issuance of Shares and Debentures: 

Debit New Equity Share Capital Account for the value of equity shares issued. 

Debit New Preference Share Capital Account for the value of preference shares issued. 

Debit 10% First Debentures Account for the value of debentures issued. 

2. Writing Down Assets: 
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Debit Capital Reduction Account for the total amount of assets written down (Goodwill: 

Rs50 million, Plant and Machinery: Rs100 million, Freehold Property: Rs80 million). 

Credit the respective asset accounts (Goodwill, Plant and Machinery, Freehold Property) for 

their written-down values. 

3. Writing off P&L Account and Remaining Assets: 

Credit Capital Reduction Account to reflect the write-off of the Profit and Loss Account 

balance and any remaining assets. 

This ensures that all adjustments are properly recorded in accordance with the principles of 

capital reduction. 

This ensures that all adjustments are properly recorded in accordance with the principles of 

capital reduction. 

 

Q-3: Total Revenue Contribution of Reportable Segments 

What percentage of XYZ Corporation’s total revenue is contributed by its reportable 

segments in 2023? 

a) 80% 

b) 90% 

c) 100% 

d) 70% 

Answer: (c) 100% 

Explanation: All three segments (Electronics, Pharmaceuticals, and Automobiles) are 

reportable segments. Their combined revenue is: 

150 + 50 + 200 = Rs400 million. 

The total revenue of XYZ Corporation is Rs500 million. 
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Thus, the percentage contribution of reportable segments is: 

(400/500) × 100 = 100%. 

 

Q-4: Total Assets of Reportable Segments 

What percentage of XYZ Corporation’s total assets is held by its reportable segments in 

2023? 

a) 70% 

b) 80% 

c) 90% 

d) 100% 

Answer: (b) 80% 

Explanation: The total assets of the reportable segments are: 

300 (Electronics) + 80 (Pharmaceuticals) + 320 (Automobiles) = Rs700 million. 

The total assets of XYZ Corporation are Rs1 billion. 

Thus, the percentage of total assets held by reportable segments is: 

(700/1000) × 100 = 80%. 

 

CASE STUDY 9 

Financial Restructuring at ABC Ltd. 

ABC Ltd. is a mid-sized manufacturing company based in Mumbai, India. The company 

specializes in producing high-quality industrial machinery and has been operational for over 

25 years. Recently, the company's board of directors convened to address several pressing 
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financial matters, including restructuring its equity capital, managing matured debentures, 

and ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Background Information: 

The company's current financial position as of March 31, 2023, is as follows: 

Paid-up Equity Share Capital : Rs 50,00,000 (Face value of Rs 10 per share, fully paid-up). 

Reserves and Surpluses : 

General Reserve: Rs 15,00,000 

Capital Redemption Reserve: Rs 4,00,000 

Profit & Loss Account: Rs 1,00,000 

Statutory Reserve: Rs 6,40,000 

Securities Premium: Rs 1,00,000 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid matured debentures: Rs 8,00,000 

Accrued interest on matured debentures: Rs 1,20,000 

The board meeting was chaired by Mr. Ramesh Kumar, the Managing Director of ABC Ltd., 

who emphasized the need to optimize the company’s capital structure while adhering to 

legal norms. The following decisions were made during the meeting: 

Decision 1: Buyback of Equity Shares 

The board decided to buy back a maximum number of shares permissible under the law to 

enhance shareholder value. According to Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company 

can buy back up to 10% of its paid-up equity share capital and free reserves through a board 

resolution without requiring shareholder approval. 
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Q-1 What is the maximum number of shares that ABC Ltd. can buy back? 

(A) 55,000 shares 

(B) 67,000 shares 

(C) 1,25,000 shares 

(D) 78,000 shares 

Solution: 

To calculate the maximum number of shares that can be bought back: 

Determine the total amount available for buyback: 

Paid-up equity share capital = Rs 50,00,000 

Free reserves = General Reserve + Profit & Loss Account + Securities Premium 

= Rs 15,00,000 + Rs 1,00,000 + Rs 1,00,000 = Rs 17,00,000 

Total eligible amount = Rs 50,00,000 + Rs 17,00,000 = Rs 67,00,000 

Calculate 10% of the total eligible amount: 

10% of Rs 67,00,000 = Rs 6,70,000 

Determine the number of shares: 

Face value per share = Rs 10 

Maximum number of shares = Rs 6,70,000 ÷ Rs 10 = 67,000 shares 

Answer: (B) 67,000 shares 

 

Decision 2: Classification of Unpaid Matured Debentures 
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During the meeting, the finance team highlighted that the company had not yet paid Rs 

8,00,000 worth of matured debentures along with accrued interest of Rs 1,20,000. These 

obligations needed to be classified correctly in the financial statements. 

Question 2: For the issuer, unpaid matured debentures and interest accrued thereon will be 

shown under which head in the balance sheet? 

(a) Non-current liabilities 

(b) Current liabilities 

(c) Non-current assets 

(d) Current assets 

Solution: 

Unpaid matured debentures and accrued interest represent short-term obligations that are 

due within the next accounting period. 

As per accounting standards, such obligations must be classified under current liabilities 

because they are expected to be settled within 12 months. 

Answer: (b) Current liabilities 

 

Decision 3: Utilization of Reserves for Buyback 

The board also discussed whether the Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR) and Statutory 

Reserve could be utilized for the proposed buyback. Under the Companies Act, 2013, certain 

reserves like CRR cannot be used for buybacks. 

Question 3: 

Which of the following reserves can be utilized for the buyback of shares? 

(a) Capital Redemption Reserve 
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(b) Statutory Reserve 

(c) General Reserve 

(d) Both (a) and (b) 

Solution: 

Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR): Cannot be used for buyback as it is created specifically 

for issuing bonus shares or redeeming preference shares. 

Statutory Reserve: Cannot be used for buyback unless permitted by law. 

General Reserve: Can be freely utilized for buyback as it is part of free reserves. 

Answer: (c) General Reserve 

 

Decision 4: Impact of Buyback on Debt-to-Equity Ratio 

After the buyback, the company wanted to assess the impact on its debt-to-equity ratio. The 

current debt-to-equity ratio before the buyback was calculated as follows: 

Total Debt = Rs 8,00,000 (Unpaid matured debentures) 

Total Equity = Rs 50,00,000 (Equity Share Capital) + Rs 27,40,000 (Reserves and Surplus) = Rs 

77,40,000 

Debt-to-Equity Ratio = Rs 8,00,000 ÷ Rs 77,40,000 ≈ 0.1034 (or 10.34%) 

Question 4: 

What will be the new debt-to-equity ratio after the buyback of 67,000 shares? 

(a) 0.112 

(b) 0.125 

(c) 0.118 
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(d) 0.130 

Solution: 

Reduction in Equity due to buyback: 

Amount spent on buyback = Rs 6,70,000 

New Equity = Rs 77,40,000 - Rs 6,70,000 = Rs 70,70,000 

Debt remains unchanged at Rs 8,00,000. 

New Debt-to-Equity Ratio: 

Rs 8,00,000 ÷ Rs 70,70,000 ≈ 0.1131 (or 11.31%) 

Answer: (a) 0.112 (approximation) 

 

Decision 5: Accounting Treatment of Buyback 

Finally, the board discussed the accounting treatment for the buyback of shares. The shares 

bought back would be extinguished, and the corresponding amount would reduce the 

company’s reserves. 

Question 5: 

Which account should be debited when shares are bought back and extinguished? 

(a) Share Capital Account 

(b) General Reserve 

(c) Profit & Loss Account 

(d) Securities Premium Account 

Solution: 
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 When shares are bought back and extinguished, the Share Capital Account is debited 

to reflect the reduction in issued capital. 

 Any excess payment over the face value is adjusted against reserves like General 

Reserve or Securities Premium. 

Answer: (a) Share Capital Account 

 

Conclusion: Through this case study, we explored various aspects of financial restructuring 

at ABC Ltd., including buyback regulations, classification of liabilities, utilization of reserves, 

and the impact on financial ratios. Each decision was aligned with legal and accounting 

principles, ensuring transparency and compliance. 

 

CASE STUDY 10 

PQR Ltd. - A Journey of Strategic Restructuring 

Background: PQR Ltd., a diversified company operating in multiple industries, has been 

facing challenges due to underperforming business segments. To streamline its operations 

and focus on core competencies, the board of directors decided to discontinue one of its 

major business segments, the Tech Innovators Division , which specializes in developing 

cutting-edge technology solutions. The decision was announced publicly after formal 

approval from the board. 

The discontinuation plan involves disposing of all assets and liabilities related to the Tech 

Innovators Division within the next year. The division qualifies as a "discontinuing 

operation" under Accounting Standard (AS) 24. PQR Ltd. prepares its financial statements in 

compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 

Financial Highlights of PQR Ltd. 

1. Carrying Amounts of Assets and Liabilities: 

 Total assets of the Tech Innovators Division: Rs. 80,00,000 
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 Total liabilities of the Tech Innovators Division: Rs. 30,00,000 

2. Profit or Loss from Ordinary Activities: 

 Pre-tax profit attributable to the Tech Innovators Division for the current period: Rs. 

5,00,000 

 Post-tax profit attributable to the Tech Innovators Division for the current period: Rs. 

3,50,000 

3. Date of Initial Disclosure Event: 

 The board approved the discontinuation plan on March 15, 2023 , and made a public 

announcement on the same day. 

4. Segment Reporting: 

 As per AS 17, the Tech Innovators Division is reported under the Technology 

Segment . 

5. Other Transactions During the Year: 

 On July 1, 2023 , PQR Ltd. purchased machinery worth Rs. 10,00,000 to enhance 

production capacity in its manufacturing division. 

 Payment details: 

 Cheque issued: Rs. 2,50,000 

 Debentures issued: 105 debentures at a face value of Rs. 7,500 each (total Rs. 

7,50,000) 

6. Cash Flow Statement Details: 

 The company follows the indirect method for preparing its cash flow statement. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1: In this scenario, what should PQR Ltd. include in its financial statements for the period 

in which the initial disclosure event occurred, as per Accounting Standard (AS) 24? 
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(A) PQR Ltd. should only disclose the carrying amounts of the total assets to be disposed of 

and the total liabilities to be settled. 

(B) PQR Ltd. should disclose a description of the discontinuing operation, the business 

segment in which it is reported as per AS 17, and the date and nature of the initial disclosure 

event. 

(C) PQR Ltd. should include all the required disclosures on the face of the statement of profit 

and loss, including pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the 

discontinuing operation. 

(D) PQR Ltd. should present the disclosures in the notes to the financial statements, except 

for the amount of pre-tax gain or loss recognized on the disposal of assets, which should be 

shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss. 

Answer: (B) 

Reason: As per AS 24, when an initial disclosure event occurs (e.g., board approval and 

public announcement), the company must disclose the following in its financial statements: 

1. A description of the discontinuing operation. 

2. The business segment in which the discontinuing operation is reported (as per AS 17). 

3. The date and nature of the initial disclosure event. 

While detailed disclosures about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, pre-tax profits, 

etc., are included in the notes to the financial statements, the key information mentioned in 

option (B) must be disclosed explicitly. 

 

Q-2: X Ltd. purchased machinery of Rs. 10,00,000 issuing a cheque of Rs. 2,50,000 and 105 

Debentures of Rs. 7,50,000. In the cash flow statement, the transaction will be shown as: 

(a) Outflow under investing activity Rs. 10,00,000, inflow under financing activity as receipt 

for debenture Rs. 7,50,000. 
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(b) Outflow under investing activity Rs. 2,50,000 

(c) Inflow of Rs. 7,50,000 as financing activity. 

(d) None of the above 

Answer: (b) 

Explanation: The purchase of machinery is classified as an investing activity in the cash flow 

statement. However, only the actual cash outflow is recorded under this category. In this 

case: 

 Cash outflow = Rs. 2,50,000 (cheque issued). 

 The issuance of debentures does not involve any cash inflow or outflow; hence, it is 

not reflected in the cash flow statement. 

Thus, the correct answer is (b) : Outflow under investing activity Rs. 2,50,000. 

 

Q-3: What is the pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the 

discontinuing operation that should be disclosed in the financial statements of PQR Ltd.? 

(A) Rs. 5,00,000 

(B) Rs. 3,50,000 

(C) Rs. 80,00,000 

(D) Rs. 30,00,000 

Answer: (A) 

Explanation: As per AS 24, the pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to 

the discontinuing operation must be disclosed separately in the financial statements. From 

the case study data: 

Pre-tax profit attributable to the Tech Innovators Division = Rs. 5,00,000. 
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This amount should be disclosed either on the face of the statement of profit and loss or in 

the notes to the financial statements. 

 

Q-4: Which of the following best describes the treatment of the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities related to the discontinuing operation in the financial statements of PQR Ltd.? 

(A) They should be disclosed only in the notes to the financial statements. 

(B) They should be shown on the face of the balance sheet under separate headings. 

(C) They should be netted off and presented as a single line item in the balance sheet. 

(D) They should be ignored until the disposal is complete. 

Answer: (A) 

Explanation: Under AS 24, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities related to a 

discontinuing operation are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements . These 

amounts are not shown separately on the face of the balance sheet but are instead 

provided as additional information in the notes. 

From the case study: 

 Carrying amount of assets = Rs. 80,00,000 

 Carrying amount of liabilities = Rs. 30,00,000 

These figures will be disclosed in the notes. 

 

Q-5: Which segment does the Tech Innovators Division belong to, as per AS 17? 

(A) Manufacturing Segment 

(B) Technology Segment 

(C) Financial Services Segment 
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(D) Retail Segment 

Answer: (B) 

Explanation: As per the case study, the Tech Innovators Division is reported under the 

Technology Segment as per AS 17. This classification is important for segment reporting 

purposes. 

 

Conclusion: This case study demonstrates how PQR Ltd. manages the discontinuation of a 

business segment while adhering to accounting standards. It also highlights the importance 

of proper disclosure in financial statements and accurate classification in the cash flow 

statement. 

 

CASE STUDY 11 

Case Study: Financial Reporting Challenges at ABC Ltd. 

Background of the Company: 

ABC Ltd is a diversified manufacturing company headquartered in Mumbai, India. The 

company operates across multiple industries, including industrial machinery and office 

equipment. Raj Sharma, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of ABC Ltd, oversees the financial 

reporting and compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Recently, Raj has been 

grappling with several complex accounting issues related to property, plant, and equipment 

(PPE), intercompany transactions, and consolidated financial statements. 

Key Facts about ABC Ltd: 

1. Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE): 

ABC Ltd owns two primary categories of PPE: 
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Industrial Buildings: These are used for manufacturing purposes and are critical to the 

company’s core operations. 

Office Buildings: These are located in prime commercial areas and are primarily used for 

administrative functions. 

As per AS-10 (Revised), Raj is considering applying different measurement models to these 

assets. Specifically, he wants to use the revaluation model for office buildings while 

continuing to apply the historical cost model to industrial buildings. 

2. Intercompany Transactions: 

ABC Ltd has a wholly-owned subsidiary, XYZ Pvt Ltd, which supplies raw materials to the 

parent company. At year-end, the following intercompany balances were reported: 

Parent's Receivable: Rs90,000 due from the subsidiary. 

Subsidiary's Payable: Rs60,000 owed to the parent. 

The difference of Rs30,000 arises because of cash in transit that was dispatched by the 

subsidiary but not yet received by the parent. 

3. Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Raj is responsible for preparing the consolidated statement of financial position for ABC Ltd 

and its subsidiary, XYZ Pvt Ltd. He needs to ensure that all intercompany balances are 

eliminated and that any discrepancies are appropriately accounted for. 

MCQ 1: Revaluation Model under AS-10 (Revised) 

Question: Raj, the CFO of ABC Ltd, is reviewing the accounting treatment of property, plant, 

and equipment (PPE) as per AS-10 (Revised). ABC Ltd owns industrial buildings and office 

buildings in various locations across India. Raj is considering applying the revaluation model 

to the subsequent measurement of the office buildings while continuing to apply the 

historical cost model to the industrial buildings. Do you think this approach is acceptable 

under AS-10 (Revised)? Provide reasons for your answer. 
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(a) Yes, this approach is acceptable because AS-10 (Revised) allows entities to apply the 

revaluation model to specific categories of PPE based on their characteristics. 

(b) No, this approach is not acceptable as AS-10 (Revised) requires all assets within a class to 

be revalued, and the office buildings and industrial buildings belong to the same class. 

(c) Yes, this approach is acceptable because AS-10 (Revised) permits selective revaluation of 

assets based on their location and function. 

(d) No, this approach is not acceptable as AS-10 (Revised) does not allow the use of the 

revaluation model for any category of PPE. 

Answer: (a) Yes, this approach is acceptable because AS-10 (Revised) allows entities to apply 

the revaluation model to specific categories of PPE based on their characteristics. 

Explanation: AS-10 (Revised) permits entities to choose between the historical cost model 

and the revaluation model for subsequent measurement of PPE. However, the choice must 

be applied consistently to all assets within a class. A "class" of PPE is defined based on the 

nature and use of the assets. In this case: 

 Industrial Buildings: Used for manufacturing purposes. 

 Office Buildings: Used for administrative functions and located in prime commercial 

areas. 

These two categories of assets have distinct characteristics, functions, and risks. Therefore, 

they can be classified as separate classes of PPE. Raj can apply the revaluation model to 

office buildings while using the historical cost model for industrial buildings, provided this 

classification is consistently applied. 

 

MCQ 2: Consolidation of Intercompany Balances 

Question: Any amount owed by one member of a group to another needs to be canceled 

when preparing the consolidated statement of financial position. As of the year-end, the 

parent’s receivable includes Rs90,000 due from the subsidiary; whereas the subsidiary 
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reports that it owes only Rs60,000 to the parent. The difference has arisen because of cash 

in transit. Which is the correct way of dealing with the situation when preparing the 

consolidated statement of financial position? 

(A) Cancel Rs90,000 from both Receivable and Payable. 

(B) Cancel Rs90,000 from parent’s Receivable, Rs60,000 from subsidiary’s Payable, and 

include Rs30,000 with Cash. 

(C) Cancel Rs90,000 from Receivable and Rs60,000 from Payable. 

(D) Cancel Rs60,000 from both Receivable and Payable. 

Answer: (B) Cancel Rs90,000 from parent’s Receivable, Rs60,000 from subsidiary’s Payable, 

and include Rs30,000 with Cash. 

Explanation: When preparing consolidated financial statements, intercompany balances 

must be eliminated to avoid double-counting. Here’s how the situation should be handled: 

1. Parent’s Receivable: The parent company records Rs90,000 as receivable from the 

subsidiary. This amount must be fully eliminated. 

2. Subsidiary’s Payable: The subsidiary records Rs60,000 as payable to the parent. This 

amount must also be eliminated. 

3. Cash in Transit: The difference of Rs30,000 arises because the subsidiary has dispatched 

cash that has not yet been received by the parent. This cash is an asset of the group and 

should be included in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Thus: 

Eliminate Rs90,000 from the parent’s receivable. 

Eliminate Rs60,000 from the subsidiary’s payable. 

Recognize Rs30,000 as cash in transit in the consolidated financial statements. 
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MCQ 3: Classification of Assets under AS-10 (Revised) 

Question: Which of the following statements is true regarding the classification of assets 

under AS-10 (Revised)? 

(a) All assets owned by a company must be classified under a single class for accounting 

purposes. 

(b) Assets can be classified into different classes based on their nature, function, and risks. 

(c) The revaluation model cannot be applied to any category of PPE. 

(d) Industrial buildings and office buildings must always belong to the same class of PPE. 

Answer: (b) Assets can be classified into different classes based on their nature, function, 

and risks.  

Explanation: AS-10 (Revised) allows entities to classify assets into different classes based on 

their characteristics, such as nature, function, and risks. For example: 

 Industrial buildings are used for manufacturing and are exposed to operational risks. 

 Office buildings are used for administrative purposes and are often located in 

commercial areas, exposing them to market risks. 

Since these assets have different characteristics, they can be classified into separate classes, 

allowing for different accounting treatments (e.g., revaluation model for office buildings and 

historical cost model for industrial buildings). 

 

MCQ 4: Impact of Cash in Transit on Consolidation 

Question: What is the impact of the Rs30,000 cash in transit on the consolidated statement 

of financial position? 

(a) It increases the group’s total assets by Rs30,000. 

(b) It decreases the group’s total liabilities by Rs30,000. 
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(c) It has no impact on the group’s total assets or liabilities. 

(d) It reduces the group’s equity by Rs30,000. 

Answer: (a) It increases the group’s total assets by Rs30,000. 

Explanation: The Rs30,000 cash in transit represents an asset of the group that has not yet 

been recorded in the parent company’s books. When preparing the consolidated financial 

statements: 

The intercompany receivables and payables are eliminated. 

The Rs30,000 cash in transit is recognized as an asset of the group. 

Thus, the group’s total assets increase by Rs30,000, reflecting the cash that will soon be 

received by the parent company. 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the complexities of financial reporting under AS-10 

(Revised) and the preparation of consolidated financial statements. By addressing these 

challenges systematically, Raj ensures compliance with accounting standards while 

providing accurate and transparent financial information to stakeholders. 

Final Answers: 

1. (a) 

2. (B) 

3. (b) 

4. (a) 

 

CASE STUDY 12 
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Q-1 Mr. Rahul of ABC Electronics sold electronic gadgets worth Rs2,50,000 to Mr. Alok on 

February 15, 20X2, with delivery scheduled for March 10, 20X2. However, due to limited 

storage space at his premises, Mr. Alok requested a delay in delivery until March 25, 20X2. 

All the risks and rewards associated with the gadgets were transferred to Mr. Alok at the 

time of sale. 

Which of the following statements is correct regarding revenue recognition for this 

transaction? 

A. Revenue should not be recognized until the goods are delivered to Mr. Alok, even though 

all risks and rewards have been transferred. 

B. Revenue can be recognized on February 15, 20X2, as the goods were specifically 

identified, and the delivery delay was at the buyer's request. The goods are ready for 

delivery. 

C. Revenue should be recognized on March 10, 20X2, the originally scheduled delivery date, 

regardless of Mr. Alok's request for a delay. 

D. Revenue can be recognized on March 25, 20X2, the date Mr. Alok requested for delivery, 

as it aligns with his requirements. 

Ans- B) Revenue can be recognized on February 15, 20X2, as the goods were specifically 

identified, and the delivery delay was at the buyer's request. The conditions for revenue 

recognition under AS 9 are met, as all significant risks and rewards associated with 

ownership have been transferred, and the goods are ready for delivery. 

 

Q-2 ABC Ltd. entered into a finance lease agreement with XYZ Ltd. for a machinery costing 

Rs 5,00,000. The total minimum lease payments (MLP) for the asset were Rs 5,50,000, with 

an unguaranteed residual value (UGRV) of Rs 50,000. The gross investment in the lease (GI) 

is Rs 5,50,000, and the fair value is Rs 5,00,000. The unearned finance income (UFI) is given 

by the formula UFI = GI – (PV of MLP + PV of UGRV). 



 

CATESTSERIES.ORG 
 

Based on the given information and according to AS 19, what will be the Unearned Finance 

Income (UFI) recognized by the lessor, XYZ Ltd.? 

Ans- (b) Rs 50,000 (Because the Unearned Finance Income (UFI) is calculated as the 

difference between the gross investment in the lease (GI) and the fair value of the asset. In 

this case, GI = Rs 5,50,000, and the Fair Value = Rs 5,00,000, so UFI = GI – Fair Value = Rs 

50,000) 

 

Case Study: ABC Electronics and XYZ Finance Ltd. 

Background 

ABC Electronics is a leading manufacturer and distributor of electronic gadgets in India. The 

company has been in operation for over 15 years and is known for its high-quality products 

and reliable customer service. In February 20X2, ABC Electronics entered into several 

significant transactions that required careful accounting treatment under Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS). One of these transactions involved a sale to Mr. Alok, while another 

involved a finance lease agreement with XYZ Finance Ltd., a prominent financial services 

provider. 

Transaction Details 

Transaction 1: Sale of Electronic Gadgets to Mr. Alok 

 On February 15, 20X2 , Mr. Rahul, the Sales Manager of ABC Electronics, sold 

electronic gadgets worth Rs2,50,000 to Mr. Alok. 

 The delivery was initially scheduled for March 10, 20X2 . 

 However, due to limited storage space at his premises, Mr. Alok requested a delay in 

delivery until March 25, 20X2 . 

 All risks and rewards associated with the gadgets were transferred to Mr. Alok on 

February 15, 20X2 . 

 The goods were specifically identified, ready for delivery, and stored in ABC 

Electronics' warehouse as per Mr. Alok's request. 
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Transaction 2: Finance Lease Agreement with XYZ Finance Ltd. 

 On March 1, 20X2 , ABC Electronics entered into a finance lease agreement with XYZ 

Finance Ltd. for machinery costing Rs5,00,000. 

 The total minimum lease payments (MLP) for the asset were Rs5,50,000. 

 The unguaranteed residual value (UGRV) of the machinery was Rs50,000. 

 The gross investment in the lease (GI) was Rs5,50,000. 

 The fair value of the machinery was Rs5,00,000. 

 The unearned finance income (UFI) is calculated using the formula: 

UFI=GI−(PV of MLP+PV of UGRV) 

Multiple Choice Questions (MCQs) 

Q-1 Revenue Recognition for Sale to Mr. Alok 

Mr. Rahul of ABC Electronics sold electronic gadgets worth Rs2,50,000 to Mr. Alok on 

February 15, 20X2, with delivery scheduled for March 10, 20X2. However, due to limited 

storage space at his premises, Mr. Alok requested a delay in delivery until March 25, 20X2. 

All the risks and rewards associated with the gadgets were transferred to Mr. Alok at the 

time of sale. 

Which of the following statements is correct regarding revenue recognition for this 

transaction? 

A. Revenue should not be recognized until the goods are delivered to Mr. Alok, even though 

all risks and rewards have been transferred. 

B. Revenue can be recognized on February 15, 20X2, as the goods were specifically 

identified, and the delivery delay was at the buyer's request. The goods are ready for 

delivery. 

C. Revenue should be recognized on March 10, 20X2, the originally scheduled delivery date, 

regardless of Mr. Alok's request for a delay. 
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D. Revenue can be recognized on March 25, 20X2, the date Mr. Alok requested for delivery, 

as it aligns with his requirements. 

Answer: (B) 

Explanation: According to AS 9 (Revenue Recognition) , revenue from the sale of goods can 

be recognized when: 

1. The significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. 

2. The seller retains no continuing managerial involvement or control over the goods. 

3. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

4. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 

seller. 

5. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 

reliably. 

In this case: 

 All risks and rewards were transferred to Mr. Alok on February 15, 20X2. 

 The goods were specifically identified and ready for delivery. 

 The delay in delivery was at Mr. Alok's request, which does not affect the transfer of 

risks and rewards. 

Thus, revenue can be recognized on February 15, 20X2. 

 

Q-2 Unearned Finance Income (UFI) for XYZ Finance Ltd. 

ABC Ltd. entered into a finance lease agreement with XYZ Finance Ltd. for machinery costing 

Rs5,00,000. The total minimum lease payments (MLP) for the asset were Rs5,50,000, with 

an unguaranteed residual value (UGRV) of Rs50,000. The gross investment in the lease (GI) 
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is Rs5,50,000, and the fair value is Rs5,00,000. The unearned finance income (UFI) is given 

by the formula: 

UFI=GI−(PV of MLP+PV of UGRV) 

Based on the given information and according to AS 19, what will be the Unearned Finance 

Income (UFI) recognized by the lessor, XYZ Finance Ltd.? 

A. Rs 0 

B. Rs 50,000 

C. Rs 1,00,000 

D. Rs 1,50,000 

Answer: (B) 

Explanation: The formula for calculating UFI is: 

UFI=GI−(PV of MLP+PV of UGRV) 

From the problem: 

 Gross Investment (GI) = Rs5,50,000 

 Fair Value (FV) = Rs5,00,000 

 PV of MLP + PV of UGRV = Fair Value = Rs5,00,000 

Substituting the values: 

UFI=5,50,000−5,00,000=Rs50,000 

Thus, the Unearned Finance Income (UFI) recognized by XYZ Finance Ltd. is Rs50,000. 

 

Q-3 Impact of Delayed Delivery on Inventory Valuation 
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If ABC Electronics had not received a request from Mr. Alok for delayed delivery, how would 

the inventory valuation on February 15, 20X2, have been affected? 

A. Inventory would have decreased by Rs2,50,000. 

B. Inventory would have increased by Rs2,50,000. 

C. Inventory would remain unchanged as the goods are still with ABC Electronics. 

D. Inventory would have been written off entirely. 

Answer: (A) 

 Explanation: If Mr. Alok had not requested a delay in delivery, the goods would have been 

dispatched on February 15, 20X2, and the risks and rewards would have been transferred. 

As a result: 

The inventory would have been derecognized from ABC Electronics' books. 

The inventory valuation would have decreased by Rs2,50,000. 

 

Q-4 Lease Classification 

Based on the details provided in the finance lease agreement between ABC Electronics and 

XYZ Finance Ltd., which of the following criteria confirms that the lease is classified as a 

finance lease under AS 19? 

A. The lease term covers a major part of the asset's economic life. 

B. The present value of the minimum lease payments equals or exceeds substantially all of 

the fair value of the leased asset. 

C. Ownership of the asset is transferred to the lessee by the end of the lease term. 

D. All of the above. 

Answer: (D) 



 

CATESTSERIES.ORG 
 

Explanation: 

Under AS 19 (Leases), a lease is classified as a finance lease if any of the following criteria 

are met: 

1. The lease term covers a major part of the asset's economic life. 

2. The present value of the minimum lease payments equals or exceeds substantially all of 

the fair value of the leased asset. 

3. Ownership of the asset is transferred to the lessee by the end of the lease term. 

In this case, all three criteria are satisfied, confirming that the lease is a finance lease. 

 

Summary of Answers: 

Q-1: B 

Q-2: B 

Q-3: A 

Q-4: D 

 

CASE STUDY 13  

Q-1 Mr. Sharma, the Finance Manager of ABC Ltd, is reviewing the company's financial 

statements. ABC Ltd recently received a notice from a customer claiming damages of 

Rs5,00,000 due to alleged health issues caused by their product. They have determined a 

reliable estimate of Rs5,00,000 for this potential liability. However, they are uncertain about 

whether an outflow of resources will be probable because the customer may or may not 

win the case. How should ABC Ltd treat this situation in their financial statements? 
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A) ABC Ltd should recognize a provision for the full amount of Rs5,00,000 to cover the 

potential liability as it is a reliable estimate. 

B) ABC Ltd should not recognize a provision but should disclose the case in the notes to the 

financial statements as a contingent liability since the probability of an outflow is uncertain. 

C) ABC Ltd should recognize a contingent asset for Rs5,00,000 to offset the potential liability 

and recognize a gain. 

D) ABC Ltd should recognize a contingent liability for Rs5,00,000 as it is a reliable estimate 

and may become a provision later if the customer wins the case. 

Ans- B) ABC Ltd should not recognize a provision but should disclose the case in the notes to 

the financial statements as a contingent liability since the probability of an outflow is 

uncertain. 

Option B is correct because, according to the provided information, ABC Ltd has determined 

a reliable estimate for the potential liability of Rs5,00,000, but they are uncertain about 

whether an outflow of resources will be probable due to the legal uncertainty of the 

customer's case. In such cases, a provision should not be recognized, but the contingent 

liability should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This disclosure is in line 

with accounting standards when the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits is uncertain. 

 

Q-2 Pooja Ltd., an Indian corporation, prepared its financial statements for the year ending 

31st March, 20X3. On 5th April, 20X3, the company received information about a major 

customer going bankrupt, resulting in an unrecoverable debt of Rs1 crore. The bankruptcy 

occurred on 25th March, 20X3, and the customer was a debtor as of 31st March, 20X3. How 

should Pooja Ltd. treat this information according to AS 4 (Revised)? 

A) Pooja Ltd. should recognize a provision for bad debts and adjust the financial statements 

for the year ended 31st March, 20X3, by reducing debtors and recognizing an expense of 

Rs1 crore. 
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B) Pooja Ltd. should disclose this information in the notes to the financial statements for the 

year ended 31st March, 20X3, as a non-adjusting event since it occurred after the balance 

sheet date and does not relate to conditions existing at that date. 

C) Pooja Ltd. should revise the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 20X3, to 

reflect the loss due to bankruptcy, even though it occurred after the balance sheet date, to 

provide a true and fair view of the financial position. 

D) Pooja Ltd. should record this event as an extraordinary item in the profit and loss account 

for the year ending 31st March, 20X3, to highlight its material impact. 

Ans- B) Pooja Ltd. should disclose this information in the notes to the financial statements 

for the year ended 31st March, 20X3, as a non-adjusting event since it occurred after the 

balance sheet date and does not relate to conditions existing at that date. 

AS 4 (Revised) categorizes events occurring after the balance sheet date as adjusting or non-

adjusting events. Adjusting events provide further evidence about conditions existing at the 

balance sheet date and require adjustments to the financial statements. Non-adjusting 

events, on the other hand, are those that occur after the balance sheet date and do not 

relate to conditions existing at that date. 

In this scenario, the bankruptcy of the major customer and the resultant debt of Rs1 crore 

occurred after the balance sheet date of 31st March, 20X3. Since this event does not 

provide additional evidence about conditions existing at the balance sheet date and arose 

after that date, it is classified as a non-adjusting event. Therefore, Pooja Ltd. should disclose 

this information in the notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 

20X3, to inform the users of the financial statements about the event and its potential 

impact. 

 

Case Study: Financial Reporting Challenges at ABC Ltd. 

Background: 
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ABC Ltd. is a mid-sized manufacturing company based in India, specializing in the production 

of health supplements. The company has been growing steadily over the past few years, and 

its financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS). Mr. Sharma, the Finance Manager, is responsible for ensuring that the financial 

statements comply with the relevant accounting standards and provide a true and fair view 

of the company's financial position. 

The company's financial year ends on 31st March. For the year ending 31st March 20X3, 

ABC Ltd. faced several challenges related to contingent liabilities, post-balance-sheet 

events, and revenue recognition. Below is a detailed case study of the issues faced by ABC 

Ltd., along with the relevant data to solve the multiple-choice questions (MCQs). 

Situation 1: Contingent Liability Due to Customer Claim 

In February 20X3, ABC Ltd. received a legal notice from a customer claiming damages of 

Rs5,00,000 due to alleged health issues caused by one of their products. The customer had 

filed a lawsuit against the company, alleging that the product caused severe allergic 

reactions. After consulting with legal advisors, ABC Ltd. determined that there was a reliable 

estimate of Rs5,00,000 for the potential liability. However, the outcome of the lawsuit was 

uncertain, as the customer may or may not win the case. 

Mr. Sharma needs to decide how to treat this situation in the financial statements for the 

year ending 31st March 20X3. 

Situation 2: Post-Balance-Sheet Event – Bankruptcy of a Major Customer 

On 5th April 20X3, ABC Ltd. received information that one of its major customers, XYZ 

Enterprises, had gone bankrupt. This bankruptcy occurred on 25th March 20X3, just six days 

before the balance sheet date. As of 31st March 20X3, XYZ Enterprises owed ABC Ltd. Rs1 

crore. The company's management believes that the entire amount is unrecoverable due to 

the bankruptcy. 

Mr. Sharma must determine whether this event should be treated as an adjusting or non-

adjusting event under AS 4 (Revised) and decide how to reflect it in the financial statements. 
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Situation 3: Revenue Recognition for Long-Term Contracts 

ABC Ltd. entered into a long-term contract with a government agency on 1st October 20X2 

to supply health supplements over a period of two years. The total contract value is Rs2 

crores, and the company recognizes revenue using the percentage-of-completion method. 

By 31st March 20X3, ABC Ltd. had completed 60% of the contract. 

Mr. Sharma needs to calculate the revenue to be recognized for the year ending 31st March 

20X3 and ensure compliance with Ind AS 115 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers). 

Situation 4: Impairment of Fixed Assets 

During the year, ABC Ltd. invested heavily in new machinery costing Rs5 crores to enhance 

production capacity. However, due to increased competition and a decline in market 

demand, the company's sales have dropped significantly. The carrying amount of the 

machinery as of 31st March 20X3 is Rs4.5 crores, while its recoverable amount (higher of 

value in use and fair value less costs to sell) is estimated to be Rs3.8 crores. 

Mr. Sharma must assess whether the machinery is impaired and, if so, calculate the 

impairment loss to be recognized in the financial statements. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1: Contingent Liability Due to Customer Claim 

Mr. Sharma, the Finance Manager of ABC Ltd, is reviewing the company's financial 

statements. ABC Ltd recently received a notice from a customer claiming damages of 

Rs5,00,000 due to alleged health issues caused by their product. They have determined a 

reliable estimate of Rs5,00,000 for this potential liability. However, they are uncertain about 

whether an outflow of resources will be probable because the customer may or may not 

win the case. How should ABC Ltd treat this situation in their financial statements? 

Options: 

A) ABC Ltd should recognize a provision for the full amount of Rs5,00,000 to cover the 

potential liability as it is a reliable estimate. 



 

CATESTSERIES.ORG 
 

B) ABC Ltd should not recognize a provision but should disclose the case in the notes to the 

financial statements as a contingent liability since the probability of an outflow is uncertain. 

C) ABC Ltd should recognize a contingent asset for Rs5,00,000 to offset the potential liability 

and recognize a gain. 

D) ABC Ltd should recognize a contingent liability for Rs5,00,000 as it is a reliable estimate 

and may become a provision later if the customer wins the case. 

Answer: B) ABC Ltd should not recognize a provision but should disclose the case in the 

notes to the financial statements as a contingent liability since the probability of an outflow 

is uncertain. 

Explanation: According to Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent 

Assets), a provision should only be recognized when: 

There is a present obligation as a result of a past event. 

It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation. 

A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

In this case, although a reliable estimate of Rs5,00,000 has been determined, the probability 

of an outflow is uncertain because the customer may or may not win the case. Therefore, a 

provision cannot be recognized. However, the contingent liability must be disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements as per Ind AS 37. 

 

Q-2: Post-Balance-Sheet Event – Bankruptcy of a Major Customer 

Pooja Ltd., an Indian corporation, prepared its financial statements for the year ending 31st 

March 20X3. On 5th April 20X3, the company received information about a major customer 

going bankrupt, resulting in an unrecoverable debt of Rs1 crore. The bankruptcy occurred 

on 25th March 20X3, and the customer was a debtor as of 31st March 20X3. How should 

Pooja Ltd. treat this information according to AS 4 (Revised)? 
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Options: 

A) Pooja Ltd. should recognize a provision for bad debts and adjust the financial statements 

for the year ended 31st March 20X3, by reducing debtors and recognizing an expense of Rs1 

crore. 

B) Pooja Ltd. should disclose this information in the notes to the financial statements for the 

year ended 31st March 20X3, as a non-adjusting event since it occurred after the balance 

sheet date and does not relate to conditions existing at that date. 

C) Pooja Ltd. should revise the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 20X3, to 

reflect the loss due to bankruptcy, even though it occurred after the balance sheet date, to 

provide a true and fair view of the financial position. 

D) Pooja Ltd. should record this event as an extraordinary item in the profit and loss account 

for the year ending 31st March 20X3, to highlight its material impact. 

Answer: B) Pooja Ltd. should disclose this information in the notes to the financial 

statements for the year ended 31st March 20X3, as a non-adjusting event since it occurred 

after the balance sheet date and does not relate to conditions existing at that date. 

Explanation: AS 4 (Revised) classifies events occurring after the balance sheet date into two 

categories: 

1. Adjusting Events: These provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet 

date. 

2. Non-Adjusting Events: These are indicative of conditions that arose after the balance 

sheet date. 

In this case, the bankruptcy of the customer occurred on 25th March 20X3, but the 

company became aware of it only on 5th April 20X3. Since the event does not provide 

additional evidence about conditions existing at the balance sheet date (31st March 20X3), 

it is classified as a non-adjusting event. Therefore, the financial statements should not be 

adjusted, but the event must be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Q-3: Revenue Recognition for Long-Term Contracts 

ABC Ltd. entered into a long-term contract with a government agency on 1st October 20X2 

to supply health supplements over a period of two years. The total contract value is Rs2 

crores, and the company recognizes revenue using the percentage-of-completion method. 

By 31st March 20X3, ABC Ltd. had completed 60% of the contract. What is the revenue to be 

recognized for the year ending 31st March 20X3? 

Options: 

A) Rs1 crore 

B) Rs1.2 crores 

C) Rs1.5 crores 

D) Rs2 crores 

Answer: B) Rs1.2 crores 

Explanation: Under the percentage-of-completion method, revenue is recognized based on 

the proportion of work completed. 

Total contract value = Rs2 crores 

Percentage of completion = 60% 

Revenue to be recognized = Rs2 crores × 60% = Rs1.2 crores 

Thus, the revenue to be recognized for the year ending 31st March 20X3 is Rs1.2 crores. 

 

Q-4: Impairment of Fixed Assets 

ABC Ltd. purchased machinery costing Rs5 crores during the year. The carrying amount of 

the machinery as of 31st March 20X3 is Rs4.5 crores, while its recoverable amount is 
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estimated to be Rs3.8 crores. What is the impairment loss to be recognized in the financial 

statements? 

Options: 

A) Rs0.5 crores 

B) Rs0.7 crores 

C) Rs1.2 crores 

D) Rs1.5 crores 

Answer: B) Rs0.7 crores 

Explanation: Impairment loss = Carrying amount – Recoverable amount 

Carrying amount = Rs4.5 crores 

Recoverable amount = Rs3.8 crores 

Impairment loss = Rs4.5 crores – Rs3.8 crores = Rs0.7 crores 

Thus, the impairment loss to be recognized is Rs0.7 crores. 

 

Final Answer Summary: 

Q-1: B 

Q-2: B 

Q-3: B 

Q-4: B 

 

CASE STUDY 14 
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Corporate Finance and Amalgamation at TechNova Ltd. 

Background of the Case: 

TechNova Ltd., a leading technology company, has been undergoing significant financial 

restructuring to optimize its capital structure and expand its operations. The company is 

known for its innovative approach to corporate finance and strategic mergers and 

acquisitions. Recently, TechNova Ltd. has been involved in two major financial events: 

1. Conversion of Shares into Stock and Vice Versa: 

In June 20X2, TechNova Ltd. decided to convert a portion of its fully paid equity shares into 

stock to enhance flexibility in ownership division. Later, in June 20X3, the company reversed 

this decision by reconverting the stock back into equity shares. 

2. Amalgamation with Innovatech Solutions: 

In December 20X3, TechNova Ltd. acquired Innovatech Solutions, a smaller but highly 

innovative software development firm, through a purchase amalgamation. This acquisition 

was part of TechNova's strategy to expand its product portfolio and enter new markets. 

Event 1: Conversion of Shares into Stock and Vice Versa 

Details of TechNova Ltd.'s Capital Structure (Before June 20X2): 

 Authorized Capital: Rs10,00,000 

 Divided into 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs100 each. 

 All shares are fully paid up. 

June 20X2: Conversion of Shares into Stock 

 TechNova Ltd. passed a resolution to convert 4,000 fully paid Equity Shares of Rs100 

each into stock. 

 The purpose of this conversion was to allow greater flexibility in dividing and 

transferring ownership without being restricted to the fixed face value of Rs100 per 

share. 
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June 20X3: Reconversion of Stock into Shares 

 The stock created in June 20X2 was reconverted into 40,000 Equity Shares of Rs10 

each, fully paid up. 

 This reconversion aimed to align the capital structure with the company’s evolving 

needs and simplify ownership tracking. 

Event 2: Amalgamation with Innovatech Solutions 

Details of the Amalgamation: 

 Net Assets of Innovatech Solutions: Rs20 lakhs 

 Purchase Consideration Paid by TechNova Ltd.: Rs23 lakhs 

 Nature of the Amalgamation: Purchase Amalgamation (as per accounting standards). 

Key Financial Implications: 

TechNova Ltd. treated the transaction as a business purchase. 

The excess of purchase consideration over the net assets acquired was recognized in the 

books of accounts. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1: What sets shares apart from stock in the context of TechNova Ltd.'s financial 

restructuring? 

(a) Shares represent ownership in the company, while stock represents loans provided by 

shareholders. 

(b) Shares are distinct units of ownership that hold a fixed value, whereas stock is a 

conglomerate of fully paid shares designed for greater flexibility in value division. 

(c) Shares are inherently divisible into fractional amounts, while stock can only be 

transferred as whole units. 
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(d) Shares are exclusively held by individual investors, whereas stock is typically owned by 

institutional investors. 

Answer: (b) Shares are distinct units of ownership that hold a fixed value, whereas stock is a 

conglomerate of fully paid shares designed for greater flexibility in value division. 

Explanation: In June 20X2, TechNova Ltd. converted 4,000 fully paid Equity Shares of Rs100 

each into stock. Shares are specific units of ownership with a fixed face value (Rs100 in this 

case), while stock represents a consolidated collection of fully paid shares. Stock allows for 

greater flexibility in dividing and transferring ownership without being tied to the original 

face value. In June 20X3, the stock was reconverted into 40,000 Equity Shares of Rs10 each, 

further demonstrating the distinction between shares and stock. 

 

Q-2: In the context of the amalgamation between TechNova Ltd. and Innovatech Solutions, 

what treatment should be given to the Rs3 lakh difference between the purchase 

consideration (Rs23 lakhs) and the net assets acquired (Rs20 lakhs)? 

(A) Rs3 lakhs will be treated as Capital Reserve. 

(B) Rs3 lakhs will be treated as Goodwill. 

(C) Rs20 lakhs will be treated as Capital Reserve and Rs3 lakhs will be Goodwill. 

(D) None of the above. 

Answer: (B) Rs3 lakhs will be treated as Goodwill. 

Explanation: In a purchase amalgamation, the excess of purchase consideration over the net 

assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Here, the purchase consideration is Rs23 lakhs, 

and the net assets of Innovatech Solutions are valued at Rs20 lakhs. The difference of Rs3 

lakhs represents the premium paid by TechNova Ltd. for acquiring Innovatech Solutions, 

which is recorded as goodwill in the books of accounts. 
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Q-3: After the reconversion of stock into shares in June 20X3, what is the total number of 

equity shares held by TechNova Ltd.? 

(a) 10,000 Equity Shares 

(b) 40,000 Equity Shares 

(c) 14,000 Equity Shares 

(d) 6,000 Equity Shares 

Answer: (c) 14,000 Equity Shares 

Explanation: Initially, TechNova Ltd. had 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs100 each. In June 20X2, 

4,000 shares were converted into stock, leaving 6,000 shares. In June 20X3, the stock was 

reconverted into 40,000 Equity Shares of Rs10 each. Adding these 40,000 shares to the 

remaining 6,000 shares results in a total of 14,000 Equity Shares. 

 

Q-4: If TechNova Ltd. decides to issue bonus shares in the ratio of 1:5 after the reconversion 

of stock into shares, how many bonus shares will be issued? 

(a) 2,800 Bonus Shares 

(b) 7,000 Bonus Shares 

(c) 14,000 Bonus Shares 

(d) 28,000 Bonus Shares 

Answer: (a) 2,800 Bonus Shares 

Explanation: After the reconversion, TechNova Ltd. has 14,000 Equity Shares. A bonus issue 

in the ratio of 1:5 means that for every 5 shares held, 1 bonus share is issued. 

Number of bonus shares = 
     

 
= 2800. 

Thus, 2,800 bonus shares will be issued. 
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Q-5: What is the primary reason for TechNova Ltd. to convert shares into stock in June 

20X2? 

(a) To reduce the company’s authorized capital. 

(b) To increase the face value of shares. 

(c) To allow greater flexibility in dividing and transferring ownership. 

(d) To comply with regulatory requirements. 

Answer: (c) To allow greater flexibility in dividing and transferring ownership. 

Explanation: The conversion of shares into stock in June 20X2 was aimed at providing 

greater flexibility in dividing and transferring ownership. Stock allows for fractional transfers 

and eliminates the restriction of fixed face values associated with shares. 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the intricacies of corporate finance and 

amalgamations, showcasing how companies like TechNova Ltd. strategically manage their 

capital structure and acquisitions. By understanding the distinctions between shares and 

stock, as well as the accounting treatment of purchase amalgamations, stakeholders can 

make informed decisions about such financial transformations. 

 

CASE STUDY 15 

Tube Ltd. and XYZ Corporation 

Background of the Case 

Tube Ltd. is a mid-sized manufacturing company that specializes in producing high-quality 

steel tubes for industrial applications. The company has been performing well financially, 

with strong reserves and a healthy cash position. Recently, the board of directors decided to 
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buy back 30,000 equity shares at Rs40 each to improve shareholder value. To finance this 

buyback, the company sold two-thirds of its non-trading investments. 

In addition to Tube Ltd., the case also involves Jessica, an accountant at XYZ Corporation, a 

separate entity where she is responsible for reconciling branch and head office accounts. 

While reviewing the financial records, Jessica noticed discrepancies between the Branch 

Account in the head office books and the Head Office Account in the branch books. These 

discrepancies need to be resolved before finalizing the accounts. 

The following sections provide detailed information about both companies and their 

respective financial situations. 

Part 1: Financial Transactions at Tube Ltd. 

Extract of Balance Sheet (Before Buyback) 

Particulars Amount (Rs) 

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 20,00,000 

Securities Premium 4,80,000 

Reserves 15,00,000 

Profit & Loss Account 5,60,000 

Bank 18,20,000 

Non-Trading Investments 8,40,000 

Key Transactions Related to Buyback 

1. Buyback Details: 

Number of shares bought back: 30,000 

Price per share: Rs40 

Total cost of buyback: 30,000×40=Rs12,00,000 
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2. Financing the Buyback : 

Two-thirds of the non-trading investments were sold. 

Book value of non-trading investments: Rs8,40,000 

Sale proceeds from two-thirds of the investments: Rs11,80,000 

3. Impact on Bank Balance : 

Opening bank balance: Rs18,20,000 

Amount received from sale of investments: Rs11,80,000 

Amount paid for buyback: Rs12,00,000 

 

MCQ 1: Bank Balance After Buyback 

Question: What will be the closing balance of the bank account after the buyback? 

Options: 

(A) Rs12,00,000 

(B) Rs16,00,000 

(C) Rs14,50,000 

(D) Rs18,00,000 

Solution: 

Opening balance of bank: Rs18,20,000 

Add: Sale proceeds from investments: Rs11,80,000 

Less: Payment for buyback: Rs12,00,000 

Closing balance of bank: 
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18,20,000+11,80,000−12,00,000=Rs18,00,000 

Answer : (D) Rs18,00,000 

 

Part 2: Reconciliation of Accounts at XYZ Corporation 

Background 

XYZ Corporation operates through multiple branches across the country. Jessica, a diligent 

accountant, is responsible for reconciling the branch and head office accounts. During her 

review, she identified discrepancies between the Branch Account in the head office books 

and the Head Office Account in the branch books. 

Discrepancy Details 

1. Branch Records: Goods sent by the head office to the branch were recorded correctly in 

the branch books. 

2. Head Office Records: Goods sent by the branch to the head office were underreported by 

Rs50,000 in the head office's records. 

3. Other Observations: The debit balance in the Branch Account in the head office books 

was Rs2,50,000. 

The net assets at the branch (as per the branch books) were also Rs2,50,000. 

 

MCQ 2: Reason for Discrepancy 

Question: What is the reason for the discrepancy between the Branch Account in the head 

office books and the Head Office Account in the branch books? 

 

Options: 
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(a) Goods sent by the head office were underreported in the branch's records. 

(b) Goods sent by the branch were underreported in the head office's records. 

(c) A debit balance in the Branch Account must always be equal to the net assets at the 

branch. 

(d) Reconciliation of branch and head office accounts is not necessary if they appear as 

converse entries of each other. 

Solution: 

Option (a): Incorrect. If goods sent by the head office were underreported in the branch's 

records, it would lead to a higher value in the branch's account compared to the head 

office's account. This is not the case here. 

Option (b): Correct. Goods sent by the branch to the head office were underreported by 

Rs50,000 in the head office's records, leading to a discrepancy. 

Option (c): Irrelevant. While the debit balance in the Branch Account matches the net assets 

at the branch, this does not explain the discrepancy. 

Option (d): Incorrect. Reconciliation is essential to ensure accuracy in financial reporting. 

Answer: (b) Goods sent by the branch were underreported in the head office's records. 

 

MCQ 3: Impact of Underreporting 

Question: If the underreporting of goods sent by the branch is corrected, what will be the 

impact on the Branch Account in the head office books? 

Options: 

(a) Increase by Rs50,000 

(b) Decrease by Rs50,000 
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(c) No change 

(d) Decrease by Rs1,00,000 

Solution: The Branch Account in the head office books currently shows a debit balance of 

Rs2,50,000. 

Correcting the underreporting of Rs50,000 will increase the debit balance in the Branch 

Account. 

Answer: (a) Increase by Rs50,000 

 

MCQ 4: Net Assets at the Branch 

Question: After reconciliation, what will be the new net assets at the branch? 

Options: 

(a) Rs2,50,000 

(b) Rs3,00,000 

(c) Rs2,00,000 

(d) Rs3,50,000 

Solution: Current net assets at the branch: Rs2,50,000 

Correction of underreporting does not affect the net assets at the branch because it only 

impacts the inter-office accounting. 

Answer: (a) Rs2,50,000 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the financial transactions at Tube Ltd. and the 

reconciliation challenges faced by Jessica at XYZ Corporation. Both scenarios involve careful 
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analysis of financial data and adherence to accounting principles. By solving the MCQs, users 

can gain insights into buyback financing, bank balance calculations, and branch-head office 

reconciliation processes. 

 

CASE STUDY 16 

Amalgamation and Accounting Assumptions at ABC Enterprises and XYZ Corporation 

Background: 

ABC Enterprises, a medium-sized manufacturing company founded by Mr. Sandeep in 2005, 

has been operating successfully for over 17 years. The company specializes in producing 

industrial machinery components and has built a strong reputation in the market. However, 

due to personal reasons, Mr. Sandeep decided to retire on March 31, 20X2, and sell his 

business. 

XYZ Corporation, another established player in the manufacturing industry, has been 

exploring opportunities to expand its operations and reduce competition. After months of 

negotiations, ABC Enterprises and XYZ Corporation agreed to join forces through an 

amalgamation. This decision was driven by the desire to enhance operational efficiencies, 

pool resources, and continue the businesses as one entity. 

Key Details of the Amalgamation: 

1. Transfer of Assets and Liabilities: All assets and liabilities of ABC Enterprises will be 

transferred to XYZ Corporation. 

2. Shareholder Arrangement: Shareholders of ABC Enterprises (excluding those shares held 

by XYZ Corporation or its subsidiaries) will become equity shareholders of XYZ Corporation. 

3. Consideration: The consideration for the amalgamation will be satisfied solely by issuing 

equity shares of XYZ Corporation to the eligible shareholders of ABC Enterprises. Any 

fractional shares will be settled in cash. 
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4. Continuation of Business: XYZ Corporation intends to continue the business of ABC 

Enterprises without making any adjustments to the book values of assets and liabilities, 

except for ensuring uniformity in accounting policies. 

5. No Purchase Price Allocation: There is no plan to revalue assets or liabilities, nor is there 

any intention to treat this transaction as a purchase. 

Financial Statements of ABC Enterprises: 

Before finalizing the sale, Mr. Sandeep prepared the financial statements for ABC 

Enterprises for the year ending March 31, 20X2. During this process, he adhered to the 

fundamental accounting assumptions and principles. His friend, Mr. Robert, reviewed the 

financial statements and raised concerns about the assumptions used. 

Key Financial Data of ABC Enterprises (as of March 31, 20X2): 

 Total Assets: ₹50,00,000 

 Total Liabilities: ₹20,00,000 

 Share Capital: ₹15,00,000 (Equity Shares of ₹10 each) 

 Reserves and Surplus: ₹15,00,000 

 Profit Before Tax: ₹8,00,000 

 Tax Rate: 30% 

 

MCQs Based on the Case Study: 

MCQ 1: What type of amalgamation does the scenario between ABC Enterprises and XYZ 

Corporation represent? 

Options: 

A) Amalgamation in the nature of merger 

B) Amalgamation in the nature of purchase 

C) External Reconstruction 
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D) Strategic Alliance 

Answer: A) Amalgamation in the nature of merger 

Explanation: The scenario satisfies all the conditions for an amalgamation in the nature of 

merger: 

 

1. Pooling of Interests: The assets and liabilities of ABC Enterprises are transferred to XYZ 

Corporation, and the shareholders of ABC Enterprises become shareholders of XYZ 

Corporation. 

2. Equity Consideration: The consideration is discharged primarily by issuing equity shares of 

XYZ Corporation, with cash payments only for fractional shares. 

3. Continuation of Business: XYZ Corporation intends to continue the business of ABC 

Enterprises without significant changes. 

4. No Revaluation of Assets/Liabilities: There is no adjustment to the book values of assets 

and liabilities, except for ensuring uniformity in accounting policies. 

This reflects a genuine pooling of interests, which is characteristic of an amalgamation in the 

nature of merger. 

 

MCQ 2: Which fundamental accounting assumption has Mr. Sandeep considered in 

preparing the financial statements of ABC Enterprises for the year ending March 31, 20X2? 

Options: 

A) Consistency: Sandeep assumed that his accounting policies remained unchanged from 

the previous year to ensure comparability in the financial statements. 
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B) Going Concern: Sandeep assumed that ABC Enterprises will continue its operations in the 

foreseeable future and recognized the need for sufficient profit retention to meet its 

financial commitments. 

C) Accrual Basis: Sandeep assumed that revenues and expenses were recognized when they 

were earned or incurred, not when the money was received or paid, to ensure accurate 

financial reporting. 

D) Users of Financial Statements: Sandeep considered the diverse group of users, including 

investors, employees, lenders, suppliers, customers, government, and the public, who rely 

on financial statements to make informed economic decisions. 

Answer: B) Going Concern 

Explanation: Mr. Sandeep prepared the financial statements under the assumption that ABC 

Enterprises would continue its operations in the foreseeable future. This is evident because: 

1. He did not account for any liquidation or closure of the business. 

2. The financial statements reflect the ability of the business to meet its financial obligations 

as they fall due. 

3. Potential buyers and investors would rely on these financial statements to assess the 

company's future prospects. 

While consistency, accrual basis, and user considerations are important, the going concern 

assumption is central to the preparation of financial statements in this case. 

 

MCQ 3: Calculate the net profit after tax for ABC Enterprises for the year ending March 31, 

20X2. 

Options: 

A) ₹5,60,000 
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B) ₹6,40,000 

C) ₹8,00,000 

D) ₹2,40,000 

Answer: A) ₹5,60,000 

Explanation: 

To calculate the net profit after tax: 

1. Profit Before Tax: ₹8,00,000 

2. Tax Rate: 30% 

Tax = 30% of ₹8,00,000 = ₹2,40,000 

3. Net Profit After Tax = Profit Before Tax - Tax 

Net Profit After Tax = ₹8,00,000 - ₹2,40,000 = ₹5,60,000 

Thus, the correct answer is ₹5,60,000. 

 

MCQ 4: If XYZ Corporation issues equity shares at ₹50 per share to the shareholders of ABC 

Enterprises, how many equity shares will be issued to settle the consideration for the 

amalgamation? Assume the total consideration is equal to the net worth of ABC Enterprises 

(₹30,00,000). 

Options: 

A) 60,000 shares 

B) 50,000 shares 

C) 40,000 shares 

D) 70,000 shares 
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Answer: A) 60,000 shares 

Explanation: To calculate the number of equity shares issued: 

Total Consideration: ₹30,00,000 (Net Worth of ABC Enterprises) 

Issue Price per Share: ₹50 

Number of Shares Issued = Total Consideration ÷ Issue Price per Share 

Number of Shares Issued = ₹30,00,000 ÷ ₹50 = 60,000 shares 

Thus, XYZ Corporation will issue 60,000 equity shares. 

 

MCQ 5: What is the primary reason for ensuring uniformity in accounting policies during the 

amalgamation? 

Options: 

A) To comply with tax regulations 

B) To facilitate accurate consolidation of financial statements 

C) To increase the market value of shares 

D) To simplify the valuation of goodwill 

Answer: B) To facilitate accurate consolidation of financial statements 

Explanation: Uniformity in accounting policies ensures that the financial statements of both 

companies can be accurately consolidated. This is crucial for maintaining transparency and 

providing a clear picture of the combined entity's financial position. While tax compliance 

and market value are important, they are not the primary reasons for ensuring uniformity in 

this context. 
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Final Notes: This case study integrates all the necessary details to solve the MCQs while 

maintaining consistency across the questions. Each question is directly linked to the 

scenario, ensuring coherence and relevance. 

 

CASE STUDY 17 

Q-1 Riya Fashion Ltd., an Indian company operating in the seasonal fashion industry, 

provides the following financial information for the 1st quarter ending on June 30, 20X3: 

- Total Sales: Rs. 80 crores 

- Salary and other Expenses: Rs. 60 crores 

- Routine Advertisement Expenses: Rs. 5 crores 

- Administrative and Selling Expenses: Rs. 10 crores 

Riya Fashion Ltd. plans to defer ₹ 15 crores of expenses to the 3rd quarter, citing that the 

3rd quarter has significantly higher sales and that more expenses should be debited in that 

quarter due to the seasonal nature of their business. They argue that this approach aligns 

with the Indian Accounting Standard 25 (AS 25) on Interim Financial Reporting. 

What should be your response to Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal to defer expenses to the 3rd 

quarter based on the principles of AS 25? 

A) Accept Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal to defer expenses to the 3rd quarter since it aligns 

with the seasonal sales pattern. 

B) Reject Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal and recognize expenses in the 1st quarter in 

compliance with AS 25, which emphasizes recognizing expenses when incurred. 

C) Defer only a portion of the expenses (₹ 5 crores) to the 3rd quarter, as a compromise 

between the company's view and AS 25. 
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D) Defer all the expenses to the 3rd quarter since it has the highest sales, which should drive 

higher expenses. 

Ans- B) Reject Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal and recognize expenses in the 1st quarter in 

compliance with AS 25, which emphasizes recognizing expenses when incurred. 

Reason: According to Accounting Standard 25 (AS 25) on Interim Financial Reporting, 

income and expenses should be recognized when they are earned and incurred, 

respectively. Costs should only be deferred if it is appropriate to anticipate that type of cost 

at the end of the financial year, and if costs are incurred unevenly during the financial year. 

In this case, Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal to defer expenses to the 3rd quarter, based solely 

on the seasonal sales pattern, is not in compliance with AS 25. AS 25 requires expenses to 

be recognized when incurred, and anticipation or deferral of expenses should only occur if it 

is appropriate at the end of the financial year and if expenses are incurred unevenly. 

Therefore, the correct approach is to reject the proposal and recognize expenses in the 1st 

quarter as per AS 25. 

 

Q-2 Sophia is the CFO of XYZ Ltd., a manufacturing company. She is analyzing the financial 

data to prepare the cash flow statement for the year ending March 31, 20X1. During her 

analysis, she encounters various transactions and needs to classify them into different 

activities. Which of the following transactions would Sophia categorize as an example of 

investing activities for the cash flow statement? 

(a) Payment of Rs. 1,50,000 to suppliers for raw materials used in production. 

(b) Receipt of Rs. 2,00,000 from customers for goods sold during the year. 

(c) Sale of investments in stocks, generating a gain of Rs. 25,000. 

(d) Repayment of a bank loan of Rs. 1,00,000 along with Rs. 5,000 in interest. 

Ans- (c) Sale of investments in stocks, generating a gain of Rs. 25,000. 
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Explanation: Investing activities involve transactions related to the acquisition and disposal 

of long-term assets and other investments. In this scenario, the sale of investments in stocks 

with a gain of Rs. 25,000 represents a cash inflow resulting from the disposal of a long-term 

asset. Option (a) involves payment to suppliers for raw materials, which is a part of 

operating activities. Option (b) relates to cash received from customers for goods sold, also 

falling under operating activities. Option (d) pertains to the repayment of a bank loan and 

interest, which falls within financing activities. 

 

Case Study: Riya Fashion Ltd. – Financial Reporting and Cash Flow Analysis 

Background: 

Riya Fashion Ltd. is a leading Indian company in the seasonal fashion industry, specializing in 

designing and manufacturing trendy apparel for both domestic and international markets. 

The company operates on a financial year ending March 31st and prepares quarterly interim 

financial reports as per Indian Accounting Standard 25 (AS 25). 

The company's Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Sophia Kumar, is responsible for ensuring 

compliance with accounting standards and preparing accurate financial statements. She is 

currently analyzing the company’s financial data for the quarter ending June 30, 20X3, and 

the annual cash flow statement for the financial year ending March 31, 20X1. 

Financial Data for the Quarter Ending June 30, 20X3 

 Total Sales: Rs. 80 crores 

 Salary and Other Expenses: Rs. 60 crores 

 Routine Advertisement Expenses: Rs. 5 crores 

 Administrative and Selling Expenses: Rs. 10 crores 

Sophia notices that the company plans to defer ₹ 15 crores of expenses to the 3rd quarter, 

citing the seasonal nature of their business. They argue that since the 3rd quarter has 

significantly higher sales, it would be appropriate to allocate more expenses to that period. 

Sophia must evaluate whether this proposal aligns with AS 25. 
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Financial Transactions for the Year Ending March 31, 20X1 

While preparing the cash flow statement for the financial year ending March 31, 20X1, 

Sophia encounters the following transactions: 

1. Payment to Suppliers for Raw Materials : Rs. 1,50,000 

2. Receipt from Customers for Goods Sold : Rs. 2,00,000 

3. Sale of Investments in Stocks : Rs. 25,000 gain realized from the sale of investments. 

4. Repayment of Bank Loan : Rs. 1,00,000 principal amount repaid along with Rs. 5,000 

interest. 

Sophia needs to classify these transactions into operating, investing, or financing activities 

as per the guidelines for preparing a cash flow statement. 

MCQs Based on the Case Study 

Q-1: Riya Fashion Ltd. plans to defer ₹ 15 crores of expenses to the 3rd quarter, arguing that 

the 3rd quarter has significantly higher sales and that more expenses should be debited in 

that quarter due to the seasonal nature of their business. What should be Sophia's response 

to Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal based on the principles of AS 25? 

Options: 

A) Accept Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal to defer expenses to the 3rd quarter since it aligns 

with the seasonal sales pattern. 

B) Reject Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal and recognize expenses in the 1st quarter in 

compliance with AS 25, which emphasizes recognizing expenses when incurred. 

C) Defer only a portion of the expenses (₹ 5 crores) to the 3rd quarter, as a compromise 

between the company's view and AS 25. 

D) Defer all the expenses to the 3rd quarter since it has the highest sales, which should drive 

higher expenses. 
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Answer: B) Reject Riya Fashion Ltd.'s proposal and recognize expenses in the 1st quarter in 

compliance with AS 25, which emphasizes recognizing expenses when incurred. 

Explanation: According to AS 25, income and expenses should be recognized in the period in 

which they are earned or incurred, respectively. Deferring expenses solely based on 

seasonal sales patterns is not compliant with AS 25 unless there is a specific justification for 

anticipating such costs at the end of the financial year. In this case, the expenses incurred in 

the 1st quarter must be recognized in the same quarter, irrespective of the sales pattern in 

subsequent quarters. 

 

Q-2 Sophia is preparing the cash flow statement for the year ending March 31, 20X1. Which 

of the following transactions would she categorize as an example of investing activities? 

Options: 

(a) Payment of Rs. 1,50,000 to suppliers for raw materials used in production. 

(b) Receipt of Rs. 2,00,000 from customers for goods sold during the year. 

(c) Sale of investments in stocks, generating a gain of Rs. 25,000. 

(d) Repayment of a bank loan of Rs. 1,00,000 along with Rs. 5,000 in interest. 

Ans- (c) Sale of investments in stocks, generating a gain of Rs. 25,000. 

Explanation: Investing activities involve transactions related to the acquisition and disposal 

of long-term assets and other investments. The sale of investments in stocks falls under this 

category as it represents the disposal of a long-term asset. 

Option (a): Payment to suppliers for raw materials is part of operating activities. 

Option (b): Receipt from customers for goods sold is also part of operating activities. 

Option (d): Repayment of a bank loan and interest falls under financing activities. 
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Q-3: If Sophia decides to prepare a comparative analysis of Riya Fashion Ltd.'s profitability 

for the 1st quarter ending June 30, 20X3, what would be the net profit/loss for the quarter 

before considering any deferral of expenses? 

Options: 

A) Rs. 5 crores profit 

B) Rs. 10 crores profit 

C) Rs. 15 crores loss 

D) Rs. 0 profit/loss 

Answer: A) Rs. 5 crores profit 

Calculation: 

Net Profit = Total Sales - Total Expenses 

Total Expenses = Salary and Other Expenses + Routine Advertisement Expenses + 

Administrative and Selling Expenses 

= Rs. 60 crores + Rs. 5 crores + Rs. 10 crores = Rs. 75 crores 

Net Profit = Rs. 80 crores (Sales) - Rs. 75 crores (Expenses) = Rs. 5 crores 

 

Q-4: Assuming Sophia classifies the repayment of the bank loan and interest correctly in the 

cash flow statement, how much cash outflow would be reported under financing activities? 

Options: 

A) Rs. 1,00,000 

B) Rs. 1,05,000 

C) Rs. 5,000 
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D) Rs. 2,00,000 

Answer: B) Rs. 1,05,000 

Explanation: Financing activities include transactions related to raising and repaying capital. 

The repayment of the bank loan (principal amount) and interest both fall under financing 

activities. 

Cash Outflow = Principal Repayment + Interest Paid 

= Rs. 1,00,000 + Rs. 5,000 = Rs. 1,05,000 

 

Q-5: What is the total cash inflow from operating activities if Sophia includes the receipt 

from customers and excludes payments to suppliers for raw materials? 

Options: 

A) Rs. 2,00,000 

B) Rs. 50,000 

C) Rs. 3,50,000 

D) Rs. 1,50,000 

Answer: A) Rs. 2,00,000 

Explanation: Operating activities include cash flows from core business operations. Receipts 

from customers are part of operating activities, while payments to suppliers are excluded as 

per the question. 

Cash Inflow = Receipt from Customers = Rs. 2,00,000 

 

Conclusion: This case study provides a comprehensive understanding of financial reporting 

principles under AS 25 and the classification of cash flow activities. By analyzing the 
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provided data, users can solve the MCQs accurately and understand the reasoning behind 

each answer. 

 

CASE STUDY 18 

Transactions and Investments of ST Ltd 

Background 

ST Ltd is a leading manufacturing company based in India, specializing in the production of 

industrial machinery. The company has been expanding its operations through strategic 

sales and investments in other entities. In this case study, we will explore two key 

transactions involving ST Ltd: 

A sale of goods to one of its customers, Company XYZ. 

An investment in BQ Ltd, a joint venture that later transitions into an associate. 

The following sections provide detailed information about these transactions, along with 

multiple-choice questions (MCQs) and their solutions. 

Transaction 1: Sale of Goods to Company XYZ 

On 1st March 20X2 , ST Ltd sold goods worth ₹1,000,000 to Company XYZ, a regular 

customer. The terms of the sale included a clause allowing Company XYZ to return the 

goods within 30 days if they were found unsatisfactory. The goods were delivered on the 

same day, and the invoice was raised for ₹1,000,000. 

Key Events 

 1st March 20X2 : Goods delivered to Company XYZ, and the invoice was issued. 

 20th March 20X2 : Company XYZ informed ST Ltd about defects in the goods and 

requested a return under the return policy. 

Accounting Standards Applicable 
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 AS 9 - Revenue Recognition : Revenue should only be recognized when it is probable 

that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and 

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Transaction 2: Investment in BQ Ltd 

ST Ltd acquired a 30% stake in BQ Ltd on 1st April 20X1 . This acquisition gave ST Ltd joint 

control over BQ Ltd, making it a joint venture. ST Ltd accounted for its investment in BQ Ltd 

using the proportionate consolidation method as per AS 27 - Financial Reporting of Interests 

in Joint Ventures. 

Key Events 

 1st April 20X1: ST Ltd acquired a 30% stake in BQ Ltd and gained joint control. 

 1st April 20X3: ST Ltd lost joint control over BQ Ltd due to a restructuring agreement. 

However, it retained a 20% ownership interest and continued to have significant 

influence over BQ Ltd. 

 After losing joint control, ST Ltd decided to account for its remaining investment in 

BQ Ltd as per applicable accounting standards. 

Accounting Standards Applicable 

AS 27 - Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures: Requires proportionate 

consolidation for joint ventures. 

AS 23 - Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Requires the equity method for associates. 

AS 13 - Accounting for Investments: Governs the treatment of investments in separate 

financial statements. 

 

Multiple-Choice Questions (MCQs) 

Q-1: Revenue Recognition for Sale to Company XYZ 

Question: ST Ltd sold goods worth ₹1,000,000 to Company XYZ on 1st March 20X2. The 

terms of the sale allowed Company XYZ to return the goods within 30 days if they were 
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unsatisfactory. On 20th March 20X2, Company XYZ requested a return due to product 

defects. What is the appropriate revenue recognition and accounting treatment for this 

transaction based on AS 9 'Revenue Recognition'? 

Options: 

A) Recognize revenue of ₹1,000,000 on 1st March 20X2, as the goods were sold and 

delivered. 

B) Recognize revenue of ₹0 on 1st March 20X2 and create a provision for returns of 

₹1,000,000 on 20th March 20X2. 

C) Recognize revenue of ₹0 on 1st March 20X2 and recognize a revenue reversal of 

₹1,000,000 on 20th March 20X2. 

D) Recognize revenue of ₹0 on 1st March 20X2 and recognize a revenue reversal of 

₹1,000,000 when the goods are returned on 20th March 20X2. 

Answer: B) Recognize revenue of ₹0 on 1st March 20X2 and create a provision for returns of 

₹1,000,000 on 20th March 20X2. 

Explanation: According to AS 9 , revenue should not be recognized if there is significant 

uncertainty regarding the collectability of the consideration. In this case, the right to return 

the goods within 30 days creates uncertainty about whether the economic benefits will flow 

to ST Ltd. Therefore, revenue cannot be recognized on 1st March 20X2. Instead, a provision 

for returns should be created on 20th March 20X2 when the return request is received. 

 

Q-2: Accounting Treatment for Investment in BQ Ltd 

Question: ST Ltd acquired a 30% stake along with joint control in BQ Ltd on 1st April 20X1. 

On 1st April 20X3, ST Ltd lost joint control in BQ Ltd but retained a 20% ownership interest 

and significant influence. Which of the following statements is correct in this scenario?  

Options: 

(A) Till 31st March 20X3, ST Ltd will account for BQ Ltd using the proportionate 

consolidation method. 
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(B) After 1st April 20X3, ST Ltd will account for BQ Ltd as an investment using the equity 

method under AS 23. 

(C) After 1st April 20X3, ST Ltd will account for BQ Ltd as an investment using AS 13. 

(D) After 1st April 20X3, ST Ltd needs to account for BQ Ltd as per AS 21 in its consolidated 

financial statements. 

Answer: (B) After 1st April 20X3, ST Ltd will account for BQ Ltd as an investment using the 

equity method under AS 23. 

Explanation:  

 Till 31st March 20X3 : Since ST Ltd had joint control over BQ Ltd, it accounted for its 

investment using the proportionate consolidation method as per AS 27 . 

 After 1st April 20X3 : When ST Ltd lost joint control but retained significant influence 

(20% ownership), BQ Ltd became an associate . As per AS 23 , investments in 

associates are accounted for using the equity method in consolidated financial 

statements. 

 AS 13 applies only to investments in separate financial statements, not consolidated 

ones. 

 AS 21 deals with leases and is irrelevant here. 

 

Q-3: Impact of Revenue Reversal on Profit and Loss 

Question: Assume that ST Ltd had initially recognized revenue of ₹1,000,000 on 1st March 

20X2 for the sale to Company XYZ. On 20th March 20X2, the goods were returned due to 

defects. What would be the impact on the profit and loss statement if the revenue reversal 

is recorded on 20th March 20X2? 

Options: 

A) No impact on profit and loss as the revenue was already reversed earlier. 

B) A reduction in revenue by ₹1,000,000 and a corresponding decrease in profit. 

C) An increase in expenses by ₹1,000,000 and a corresponding decrease in profit. 
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D) A provision for returns of ₹1,000,000 will be created, with no impact on profit. 

Answer: B) A reduction in revenue by ₹1,000,000 and a corresponding decrease in profit. 

Explanation: If revenue was initially recognized incorrectly, it must be reversed upon the 

return of goods. The reversal reduces the revenue by ₹1,000,000, which directly impacts the 

profit and loss statement by decreasing the profit. 

 

Q-4: Accounting for Investment in Separate Financial Statements 

Question: How should ST Ltd account for its 20% investment in BQ Ltd in its separate 

financial statements after losing joint control on 1st April 20X3? 

Options: 

A) At cost, as per AS 23. 

B) At fair value, as per AS 13. 

C) Using the equity method, as per AS 23. 

D) Using proportionate consolidation, as per AS 27. 

Answer: B) At fair value, as per AS 13. 

Explanation: In separate financial statements, investments are accounted for as per AS 13 . 

Under AS 13, investments are typically measured at fair value unless they are held for long-

term strategic purposes, in which case they may be measured at cost. 

 

Conclusion: This case study highlights the importance of adhering to accounting standards 

such as AS 9, AS 23, and AS 27 to ensure accurate financial reporting. By analyzing the 

transactions of ST Ltd, we gain insights into revenue recognition, investment accounting, 

and the impact of changes in control or influence over investees. 

 

CASE STUDY 19 
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Alpha Ltd. and Sunrise Electronics Ltd. – Financial Reporting Challenges 

Background: 

Alpha Ltd. and Sunrise Electronics Ltd. are two prominent companies operating in the 

manufacturing sector. Both companies have recently faced significant challenges in 

preparing their financial statements for the fiscal year ending March 31, 20X2. These 

challenges include recognizing deferred tax assets (DTAs) under economic uncertainties, 

addressing changes in inventory valuation methods, rectifying material misstatements, and 

ensuring compliance with Accounting Standards (AS). 

Mr. Verma, the Finance Manager at Alpha Ltd., is responsible for preparing the financial 

statements, while Mr. Rajesh, the Chief Financial Officer of Sunrise Electronics Ltd., oversees 

the company's accounting policies and ensures compliance with AS. 

Scenario 1: Deferred Tax Assets (DTAs) at Alpha Ltd. 

Facts: 

 Alpha Ltd. has a history of profitable operations but is currently facing economic 

uncertainties due to global supply chain disruptions and rising inflation. 

 The company has DTAs amounting to ₹2 Crores on its balance sheet as of March 31, 

20X2. These DTAs are primarily related to unabsorbed depreciation and carry-

forward losses. 

 Under AS 22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income," deferred tax assets should be 

recognized only to the extent that it is reasonably certain that sufficient future 

taxable income will be available against which the DTAs can be realized. 

 Despite its profitable track record, Alpha Ltd.'s management is concerned about the 

impact of recent economic uncertainties on future taxable income. 

Question 1: Which of the following statements regarding the recognition of deferred tax 

assets under AS 22 is correct in this scenario? 

A) Alpha Ltd. should recognize the full ₹2 Crores of DTAs on its balance sheet as it has a 

history of profitable operations. 
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B) Alpha Ltd. should recognize the full ₹2 Crores of DTAs but include a disclosure explaining 

the economic uncertainties. 

C) Alpha Ltd. should not recognize any DTAs until it is virtually certain that sufficient future 

taxable income will be available. 

D) Alpha Ltd. should recognize a portion of the DTAs that is reasonably certain to be realized 

based on available evidence. 

Solution: The correct answer is D) 

Reason: AS 22 requires that deferred tax assets be recognized only to the extent that it is 

reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available to realize these 

assets. While Alpha Ltd. has a history of profitability, the recent economic uncertainties 

raise doubts about the certainty of future taxable income. Therefore, the company should 

recognize only a portion of the DTAs that is reasonably certain to be realized, based on 

convincing evidence. This approach aligns with the principles of prudence and conservatism 

in accounting. Recognizing the full ₹2 Crores without sufficient certainty would violate AS 

22. 

 

Scenario 2: Change in Inventory Valuation Method at Sunrise Electronics Ltd. 

Facts: 

 Sunrise Electronics Ltd. has historically used the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method to 

value its inventory. As of March 31, 20X2, the closing inventory under the FIFO 

method amounted to ₹1,80,000. 

 In response to changing market conditions, the management decided to switch to 

the Weighted Average method for inventory valuation starting from the fiscal year 

20X1-20X2. Under this new method, the closing inventory as of March 31, 20X2, is 

assessed at ₹1,50,000. 

 Additionally, the external auditors identified a material misstatement in the financial 

statements, leading to an overstatement of profit by ₹15,000. 
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Question 2: As per Accounting Standard 1 (AS 1) on Disclosure of Accounting Policies, how 

should Sunrise Electronics Ltd. disclose the change in inventory valuation method and the 

identified material misstatement in its financial statements? 

A) Sunrise Electronics should not disclose the change in inventory valuation method as it is 

an internal accounting matter, but it should rectify the material misstatement and reissue 

the corrected financial statements. 

B) The change in inventory valuation method should be disclosed in a note to the financial 

statements, including its impact on the financial results. The material misstatement should 

also be corrected in the financial statements. 

C) The change in inventory valuation method should be disclosed in the auditor's report, 

and the material misstatement should be rectified in the next fiscal year's financial 

statements. 

D) Both the change in inventory valuation method and the material misstatement should be 

disclosed in the chairman's statement, as it is a significant event affecting the company's 

financial performance. 

Solution: B) 

Reason: 

Under AS 1, any change in accounting policies that has a material effect on the financial 

statements must be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, along with its impact 

on the financial results. In this case, the change from FIFO to the Weighted Average method 

is a significant change in accounting policy and should be disclosed accordingly. Additionally, 

material misstatements must be corrected in the financial statements themselves to ensure 

they present a true and fair view of the company's financial position and performance. 

Rectifying the misstatement in the next fiscal year or disclosing it in the chairman's 

statement would not comply with AS 1. 
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Scenario 3: Impact of Material Misstatement on Profit 

Facts: 

The material misstatement identified by the auditors resulted in an overstatement of profit 

by ₹15,000. 

The company's original reported profit before tax was ₹1,50,000. 

After correcting the misstatement, the revised profit before tax becomes ₹1,35,000. 

Question 3: What is the percentage reduction in profit before tax after correcting the 

material misstatement? 

A) 8% 

B) 10% 

C) 12% 

D) 15% 

Solution: B)  

Reason: To calculate the percentage reduction in profit before tax: 

Percentage Reduction=  
                 

                          
 ×100 

Percentage Reduction=  
     

        
 ×100 = 10% 

 

Scenario 4: Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) Recognition 

Facts: 

Due to timing differences, Alpha Ltd. has a deferred tax liability (DTL) of ₹50 Lakhs as of 

March 31, 20X2. 
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The company expects these timing differences to reverse in the next fiscal year, resulting in 

additional taxable income. 

Question 4: How should Alpha Ltd. treat the DTL in its financial statements? 

A) Recognize the DTL fully as it is expected to reverse in the next fiscal year. 

B) Disclose the DTL in the notes to the financial statements but do not recognize it on the 

balance sheet. 

C) Recognize the DTL only if it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to 

utilize it. 

D) Do not recognize the DTL as it relates to future periods. 

Solution: A) 

Reason: Deferred tax liabilities (DTLs) must be recognized in full if it is probable that the 

timing differences will reverse in the future, leading to additional taxable income. Since 

Alpha Ltd. expects the timing differences to reverse in the next fiscal year, the DTL of ₹50 

Lakhs should be fully recognized on the balance sheet. 

 

Final Notes: This case study highlights the complexities of financial reporting under Indian 

Accounting Standards (AS). By addressing issues such as DTAs, changes in accounting 

policies, and material misstatements, both Alpha Ltd. and Sunrise Electronics Ltd. 

demonstrate the importance of compliance, transparency, and accuracy in financial 

reporting. 

 

CASE STUDY 20 

Aarti Ltd. and Bright Horizon Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 

Background: 
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Aarti Ltd. is a manufacturing company based in Mumbai, India, specializing in the production 

of industrial machinery components. The company operates under Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) and has recently faced challenges related to inventory valuation during 

the fiscal year ending March 31, 20X3. Additionally, Aarti Ltd. collaborates closely with its 

sister concern, Bright Horizon Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., which provides administrative support 

services. Bright Horizon Enterprises is currently reviewing its employee benefit plans, 

particularly focusing on earned leave entitlements. 

As an accounting professional, you are tasked with addressing the following issues for both 

companies: 

Part 1: Inventory Valuation Challenges at Aarti Ltd. 

During the fiscal year ending March 31, 20X3, Aarti Ltd. encountered several challenges in 

valuing its inventory items. The company follows AS 2 (Revised) for inventory valuation. 

Below are the details of the inventory items as of March 31, 20X3: 

Inventory Items and Details: 

1. Raw Material X-101: 

 Cost per unit: Rs. 180 

 Net Realizable Value (NRV): Rs. 160 

 Quantity: 500 units 

2. Partly Finished Goods (PFG-202): 

 Cost per unit: Rs. 250 

 Additional cost required to complete: Rs. 50 per unit 

 Expected selling price after completion: Rs. 320 per unit 

 Quantity: 300 units 

3. Finished Products (FP-303): 

 Total cost per unit: Rs. 320 

 Expected selling price: Rs. 310 per unit 
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 Estimated costs to sell: Rs. 10 per unit 

 Quantity: 400 units 

 

Questions Related to Inventory Valuation: 

Q-1: According to AS 2 (Revised) on Valuation of Inventories, what is the appropriate 

valuation method for the following items in Aarti Ltd.'s inventory as of March 31, 20X3? 

(A) Raw material purchased at Rs. 180 per unit, which has a net realizable value (NRV) of Rs. 

160 per unit. 

(B) Partly finished goods with a cost of Rs. 250 per unit, which can be finished next year by 

incurring an additional cost of Rs. 50 per unit. 

(C) Finished products with a total cost of Rs. 320 per unit and an expected selling price of Rs. 

310 per unit. 

(D) None of the above. 

Answer: (A) Raw material purchased at Rs. 180 per unit, which has a net realizable value 

(NRV) of Rs. 160 per unit. 

Step-by-Step Analysis: 

1. Raw Material X-101 (Option A): 

 Cost: Rs. 180 per unit 

 NRV: Rs. 160 per unit 

 According to AS 2 (Revised) , raw materials should be valued at the lower of cost or 

NRV. In this case, the NRV (Rs. 160) is lower than the cost (Rs. 180). Therefore, the 

raw material should be written down to its NRV. 

 Valuation: Rs. 160 per unit 

2. Partly Finished Goods (PFG-202) (Option B): 
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 Cost: Rs. 250 per unit 

 Additional cost to complete: Rs. 50 per unit 

 Expected selling price after completion: Rs. 320 per unit 

 To determine the NRV of partly finished goods, we calculate 

NRV=Selling Price−Cost to Complete 

NRV=320−50=270per unit 

 Since the NRV (Rs. 270) is higher than the cost (Rs. 250), the partly finished goods 

should be valued at their cost. 

 Valuation: Rs. 250 per unit 

3. Finished Products (FP-303) (Option C): 

 Cost: Rs. 320 per unit 

 Expected selling price: Rs. 310 per unit 

 Estimated costs to sell: Rs. 10 per unit 

 To determine the NRV of finished products, we calculate: 

NRV=Selling Price−Costs to Sell 

NRV=310−10=300per unit 

 Since the NRV (Rs. 300) is lower than the cost (Rs. 320), the finished products should 

be written down to their NRV. 

 Valuation: Rs. 300 per unit 

 

Part 2: Employee Benefit Plans at Bright Horizon Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 

Bright Horizon Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., a sister concern of Aarti Ltd., provides administrative 

support services. The company offers earned leave entitlements to its employees as part of 

its employee benefits package. During the fiscal year ending March 31, 20X3, the HR 
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manager, Ms. Priya Sharma, raised concerns about the classification of earned leave 

entitlements under AS 15 (Revised) "Employee Benefits." 

Details of Earned Leave Entitlement: 

1. Employees are entitled to 15 days of earned leave annually. 

2. Leaves not utilized within the year can be carried forward for up to three years . 

3. Based on historical data, it is estimated that 60% of employees utilize their earned leaves 

within twelve months of becoming entitled to them. 

4. The remaining 40% of employees carry forward their leaves , and some encash them after 

three years. 

Question Related to Employee Benefits: 

Q-2: Based on the guidelines provided in AS 15 (Revised) "Employee Benefits," which of the 

following statements is correct regarding the classification of earned leave entitlement? 

(A) Earned leave entitlement is always considered a short-term benefit, regardless of any 

carry-forward provisions, and should be recognized without discounting. 

(B) Earned leave entitlement can be categorized as a short-term benefit if it falls due and is 

expected to be utilized within twelve months after the end of the period when the 

employee became entitled to the leave. 

(C) Earned leave entitlement is considered a long-term benefit only if there are restrictions 

on encashment or utilization, regardless of any behavioral patterns. 

(D) The classification of earned leave entitlement as short-term or long-term depends on 

individual employee choices and patterns, allowing flexibility in financial reporting. 

Ans- (B) Earned leave entitlement can be categorized as a short-term benefit if it falls due 

and is expected to be utilized within twelve months after the end of the period when the 

employee became entitled to the leave. 
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Step-by-Step Analysis: 

1. AS 15 (Revised) Guidelines: 

 Short-Term Employee Benefits: These include benefits that fall due and are expected 

to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee 

renders the related service. 

 Long-Term Employee Benefits: These include benefits that fall due beyond twelve 

months or involve deferred settlement. 

2. Application to Earned Leave Entitlement: 

 Historical data shows that 60% of employees utilize their earned leaves within 

twelve months of becoming entitled to them. This portion qualifies as a short-term 

benefit because it is expected to be utilized within the stipulated time frame. 

 The remaining 40% of employees carry forward their leaves , and some encash them 

after three years. This portion qualifies as a long-term benefit because it involves 

deferred settlement beyond twelve months. 

 

Final Notes: This case study integrates inventory valuation challenges at Aarti Ltd. and 

employee benefit classification issues at Bright Horizon Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., providing a 

cohesive narrative for solving the MCQs. Both scenarios are consistent with Indian 

Accounting Standards (AS 2 and AS 15) and provide sufficient data for accurate calculations 

and reasoning. 


